
BAREFOOT BAY
RECREATION DISTRICT

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting
October 8, 2021 at 1:00 PM

Building D&E

Agenda
Please turn off all cell phones

1. Thought of the Day

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

3. Roll Call

4. Additions or Deletions to the Agenda

5. Approval of the Agenda

6. Presentations and Proclamations

 A. Cancer Awareness Proclamation

7. Approval of Minutes

 A. Minutes dated September 28, 2021

8. Treasurer’s Report

 A. Treasurer's Report

9. Audience Participation

10. Unfinished Business

 A. Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions

 B. Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease

11. New Business

 A. Violations Committee Appointments

 B. Golf Course Lake Bank RFP Evaluation Committee Recommendation

 C. Neighborhood Revitalization Program(NRP) Purchase Confirmation 413 Plover Drive

12. Manager’s Report

 A. October 8th Community Manager's Report

13. Attorney’s Report

14. Incidental Trustee Remarks

15. Adjournment

Page 1 of 147



If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at 
this meeting, a record of the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim 
transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based 
(FS 286.0105). Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim.
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting

Page 2 of 147



 

 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

Proclamation  

 
Every year, thousands of people in the United States are diagnosed with cancer.  All cancers are cruel, inflicting 
pain and hardship for families. We honor the courage of those affected by cancer and this month renew our 
commitment to helping fight this illness that takes the lives of far too many.   

WHEREAS, while tremendous progress has been made in the fight against cancer, there is still much work to be 
done.  Cancer remains the second-leading cause of death in the United States.  Thanks to early detection, 
preventive measures, and medical innovation, survival rates for the most common cancer types — lung, 
colorectal, breast, and prostate — have vastly improved, providing much-needed hope to millions of patients and 
their families nationwide.  Despite the decreasing death rate from cancer over the last few decades, the disease 
claims the lives of roughly 1,600 Americans daily, resulting in nearly 600,000 deaths annually.   

WHEREAS, we extend our sincere appreciation to the devoted healthcare professionals, scientists, and 
researchers who have committed their lives to discovering a cure for cancer. 

NOW BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of Barefoot Bay Recreation District, to recognize October 2021 

as Cancer Awareness Month in our District in the State of Florida. I encourage all Barefoot Bay residents to increase 

awareness of what can be done to detect and treat all forms of cancer through their participation in this year’s 

Color My World Cancer Free Walk on October 16, 2021, in Barefoot Bay. It is vital that those affected by cancer 

have access to quality, affordable care, and that research of all forms of cancer continues to be vigorously 

supported.   

 

Passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees, Barefoot Bay Recreation District on this 8TH day of October 2021. 

 

          Board of Trustees 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

Barefoot Bay, FL 

 

By:                                                      

Michael R. Maino, Chairman 

Page 3 of 147



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

1 | P a g e  

 

 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

September 28, 2021 

         7PM –Building D&E 

 

Meeting Called to Order                                                                       

The Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees held a Meeting on September 28, 2021, Building D&E 

1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Maino called the meeting to order at 7PM. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  

Led by Mr. Morrissey. 

 

Roll Call  

Present: Mr. Grunow, Mr. Nugent, Mr. Morrissey, Mr. Amoss, Mr. Maino. Also, present, John W. Coffey, ICMA-

CM, Community Manager, Cliff Repperger, General Counsel and Stephanie Brown, District Clerk. 

 

Presentations and Proclamations  

None. 
 
Approval of Minutes  
Mr. Grunow made a motion to approve minutes dated September 10, 2021. Second by Mr. Morrisey. Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 

Treasurer’s Report  
Mr. Amoss made a motion to approve the Treasurer’s Report for September 28, 2021, as read. Second by Mr. 

Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Audience Participation 
Richard LePage-1037 Royal Palm-voiced his concerned about COVID-19 precautions and implored residents to be 
safe. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 147



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

2 | P a g e  

 

 
 
Unfinished Business  
 
Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions  
 
Mr. Grunow voiced his concern regarding indoor activities and would like residents to practice safety precautions. 
Mr. Coffey responded that they would keep as many activities outside as possible (ex: Karaoke). Mr. Amoss 
suggested checking air units and changing air filters frequently. 
 
BOT consensus to not impose any restrictions at this time and revisit at the next BOT meeting. 
 
Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease 
 
Mr. Repperger made a request per Steward Health Care System, LLC Deputy General Counsel Pavan Parikh to the 
BOT to table this agenda item until the October 8, 2021, BOT Meeting. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to table agenda item to the October 8, 2021, BOT Meeting. Second by Mr. Nugent. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
New Business 
 
Rules for the BOT Amendment  
 
Resolution 2021-16 Read by Mr. Repperger: 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING AND ADOPTING A REVISED SET OF 
RULES FOR THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT WITH OTHER 
PROVISIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-16 as read. Second by Mr. Morrisey. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
ADA Lifts for Pools Proposal  
 
Staff recommends the BOT approve the $15,867.00 proposal from Pool Lift Specialists for the installation of ADA 
pool lifts at all three pools. 
 
Mr. Morrissey voiced his disapproval of a proposal that includes only partial costs. 
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to approve the $15,867.00 proposal from Pool Lift Specialists for the installation of 
ADA pool lifts at all three pools. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Motion was withdrawn. 
 
 

Page 5 of 147



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

3 | P a g e  

 

 
Mr. Amoss made a recommendation to install 3 Scout Excel models as opposed to two Scout Excel models and a 
Ranger 2 model. 
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to award the contract to Pool Lift Specialists for the installation of 3 Scout Excel 
ADA model pool lifts in the amount of $17,127.00. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Building A Renovations Project: Change Order #14 Confirmation  
Staff recommends the BOT confirm the Community Manager’s approval of Change Orders #14A, #14B, and #14C  
in the amount of $3,556.05 for minor alterations offset by a credit for damages to Parkit Construction, Inc. 
 
Mr. Grunow made a motion to confirm the Community Manager’s approval of Change Orders #14A, #14B, and 
#14C in the amount of $3,556.05 for minor alterations offset by a credit for damages to Parkit Construction, Inc. 
Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Lease Agreement with Brevard County (Utility Services Department)  
 
Approval of Amendment and Renewal of Lease Agreement with Brevard County (for Utility Services Department). 
 
Mr. Nugent made a motion to approve the Amendment and Renewal of Lease Agreement with Brevard County 
Utility Services Department. Second by Mr. Morrissey. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
FY21 Budget Amendment - Change Order 13 to the Building A Renovations Project  
 
Resolution 2021-19 Read by Mr. Repperger: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING 
RESOLUTION 2020-08; AMENDING THE BUDGET. 
 
Mr.  Amoss made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-19 as read. Second by Mr. Nugent Motion passed 
unanimously 
 
FY21 Budget Amendment - Restroom Trailer by Pickle Ball/Tennis Courts.  
 
Resolution 2021-20 Read by Mr. Repperger: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING 
RESOLUTION 2020-08; AMENDING THE BUDGET. 
 

Mr. Amoss made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-20 as read. Second by Mr. Nugent Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 147



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

4 | P a g e  

 

 
FY22 Budget Amendment - Employee Health and Ancillary Insurance Plans Savings Allocations  
 
Resolution 2021-17 Read by Mr. Repperger: 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING 
RESOLUTION 2021-09; AMENDING THE BUDGET. 
 
Mr. Amoss made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-17 as read. Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
FY22 Budget Amendment - Liability and Workers’ Compensation Insurance Plans Savings Allocations  
 
Resolution 2021-18 Read by Mr. Repperger: 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING 
RESOLUTION 2021-09; AMENDING THE BUDGET. 
 
Mr. Amoss made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-18 as read. Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
FY22 Budget Amendment: Audio-Visual Tech Position Reorganization  
 
Resolution 2021-15 Read by Mr. Repperger: 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT AMENDING 
RESOLUTION 2021-09; AMENDING THE BUDGET. 
 
Mr. Morrissey made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-15 as read. Second by Mr. Grunow. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
2022 BOT and Quarterly Townhall Regular Meeting Schedule 
 
Staff recommends the BOT approve the proposed dates for the 2022 regularly scheduled BOT and select 
Quarterly Townhall meeting dates in calendar year 2022 and authorize staff to advertise them in the Florida 
Today. 
 
Mr. Amoss made a motion to approve the proposed dates for the 2022 regularly scheduled BOT meeting and April 
19, 2022, 7-9pm, July 7, 2022, 9-11am, and October 4, 2022, 7-9pm for the Quarterly Townhall Meetings in 2022. 
Second by Mr. Nugent. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 147



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

5 | P a g e  

 

Manager’s Report 
 
 
Resident Relations 
ARCC Meeting 09/14/2021 

• 1 Old Business Items – Tabled until the attorneys come to a resolution 

• 5 Consent Items – approved 

• 4 Other Items – approved 
 

ARCC Meeting 9/28/2021 

• 9 Consent Items – approved 

• 6 Other Items – approved 
 

Next ARCC Meeting 

• Is scheduled for October 12 th at 9am in Bldg. D/E. 
 

VC Meeting 09/24/2021 

• 15 Cases – came into compliance prior to the meeting 

• 1 case – homeowner is working with staff toward voluntary compliance  

• 2 Cases – presented and found to be in violation 
 

Food & Beverage 

• Music Bingo starts in Building A on October 11th from 5:30-8:30pm.  The bar opens at 4pm and 
light meals will be available for purchase from 4-7pm. Badges or guest passes are required. 

• Karaoke will move from Thursday to Tuesday night beginning Tuesday, October 5 th from 5-10pm. 
 
Great October events.  Save the dates! 

• Saturday October 2, 2021 
o The German Club, Paradise Planners, and BBRD are holding an Oktoberfest in the Pool #1 area 

starting at noon.  
o An International Polka Band will perform on the Lakeside Stage from 1 2:30-4pm.   
o Paradise Planners will transform the area into a fairy tale German village.   
o Kegs of Warsteiner beer, a favorite of our Barefoot Bay German Club residents, will be flowing 

as well as brats, German potato salad, hot dogs, big pretzels, and more .   
o Tickets and/or badges are not required for this event.   
 

• October 16, 2021 
o This year’s annual walk for cancer is themed “Color My World Cancer Free” and is a fundraiser 

for all cancers.   
o The walk will be held under the oaks by the New Administration B uilding at 9am. Sign up is 

going on now in the CVO office.   
o There will be music, a special drink menu, snacks, and activities in the Pavilion area after the 

Page 8 of 147



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

6 | P a g e  

 

walk.  BBRD Departments have a friendly competition to see who can raise the most funds for 
the charity.  While the District collectively raised over $5,000 of the $14,000 raised for the Sea 
of Pink cause in 2019, the Administration team beat out the other Departments by raising over 
$4,000. We’ll see which Department can raise the bar this year.   

 

• October 30, 2021 
o BBRD’s annual Halloween party will be Lakeside of the Lounge.  Get into a freaky costume to 

win a prize for best costume and dance to the beats of TC & Sass from 7 -10:30pm.  
 

Winter Beats Series  

• Tickets will go on sale Monday, November 1st in Building A (not the Administration Building) at 
9am for the first 2 shows in the Winter Beats series.  
o  Simply Tina is a Tina Turner tribute band that will perform on Saturday, January 15th and 

tickets are $25. 
o Dueling Pianos will perform on Saturday,  January 29th and tickets are $20.   
 

Property Services 

• Rototilled, rolled, and killed weeds in the walking path 

• Installed electric for new ice machine behind the bar in Building A 

• Replaced rotten timbers around the smoking area at Pool #3 

• Replaced all the flags on the Veterans flagpole at the Shopping Center  

• Replaced exhaust fan in the restroom at the Pro Shop 

• Began the refurbishment of the men’s room in Bldg. D/E 

• Continued installing bollards and rope line along Hawthorn Circle 

• Touched up the paint in the Building A men’s restroom 

• Repainted the facia on the restrooms at the Softball Field 

• Repainted the Veterans Memorial Eagle and cleaned up area  

• Set-up and tore down for the 9/11 service  

• Continued to solicit bids for upcoming projects 
 
Golf-Pro Shop 

• Golf Membership renewals begin October 1st  

o You may pick up applications at the Pro Shop 

o Please call Pro Shop for if you have any questions (772.664.3174)  

• End of Fiscal Year Inventory 

o Merchandise sales inside the Pro Shop will cease at 12pm on September 30 th for annual BBRD 
inventory management 

 

General Information 

• No signs on the Media Reminder  – Residents are reminded that snipe signs ( i.e., typically yard 

sales or political signs) are not allowed on the median in the middle of Barefoot Blvd. Although 

said median is within the Brevard County right-of-way, multiple historic agreements between 

Brevard County and BBRD, grant BBRD maintenance responsibility. 

 

Page 9 of 147



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

7 | P a g e  

 

• RFP Evaluation Committee Meetings Reminder 

• Golf Course Lake Bank RFP Evaluation Committee Meeting 

o Mon., Oct. 4th meeting is canceled 

o Recommendation will be on the October 8 th BOT agenda for consideration 

• Bldg. A Retaining Wall RFP Evaluation Committee Meeting:  

➢ Mon., Oct. 4th, Administration Conference Room at 1pm 

➢ Mon., Oct. 11th, Administration Conference Room at 1pm (if needed)  

 
 
 
Attorney’s Report 
 
Mr. Repperger stated that the spouse of the owner of 750 Lark Drive has made significant progress towards 
bringing the DOR violation into compliance, and he will not be filing a lawsuit at this time. He also stated that the 
Brevard County Delegation Meeting is scheduled for Sept 29, 2021, and he and Mr. Grunow will be in attendance. 
Mr. Repperger will have an update on the beach restroom pilings at the October 8, 2021, BOT Meeting. 
 
Incidental Trustee Remarks 
 
Mr. Grunow stated that the Veteran’s Day Ceremony will be under the oaks weather permitting and encouraged 
residents to decorate their golf carts. 
 
Mr. Morrissey voiced his concern on speeding in Barefoot Bay and asked if there was an update from Brevard 
County. Mr. Coffey responded that there hasn’t been an update. 
 
Mr. Maino stated that signs in Barefoot Bay have been removed/knocked down. 
 
 
Adjournment 
 

The next meeting will be on October 8, 2021, at 1pm in Building D/E. 

Mr. Nugent made a motion to adjourn. Second by Mr. Amoss. Mr. Maino adjourned. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:10pm. 

  
 
 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

         Jeff Grunow, Secretary         Stephanie Brown, District Clerk 

 

Page 10 of 147



Total Petty Cash: 2,500.00$                    

472,975.41                 
472,975.41                 

850,681.90                 
699,810.67                 

1,550,492.57              

2,025,967.98$     

 $                 24,831.03 

                                   -   
                                   -   

24,831.03$           

Expenditures for 9/21/21 - 9/30/21
Check 

Number Vendor Description Check Amount

57797 Florida Power & Light Co Electricity: 8 /21 9,063.94                          
57807 Portable Restroom Trailers, LLC 50% Deposit for Portable Restrooms by Tennis Courts 28,985.00                        
57811 Special District Services, Inc Management Fees: 9/21 13,752.18                        
57814 White Bird Law Legal Fees: 8/21 12,983.50                        
57816 Brevard County Clerk of Court Purchase of 413 Plover Dr - NRP 15,653.48                        

United States Treasury Payroll Taxes -  for the pay period ending Sep 26, 2021 16,566.13                        
PayChex Net Payroll for the pay period ending Sep 26, 2021 57,079.34                        

145,019.63$         

33,488.46$           

178,508.09$         

Barefoot Bay Recreation District
Treasurer's Report

October 8, 2021

Total Cash Balances in General Fund:

Assessments Received:

Daily Deposits:

Petty Cash
Cash Balances in General Fund as of 9/30/21

Operating Cash in Banks
MB&T Operating Account

Total Operating Accounts:
Interest Bearing Accounts

SBA Reserve Account
Total Interest Bearing Accounts:

Total Daily Deposits and Assessments Received for 9/21/21 - 9/30/21

Total Expenditures:

Expenditures under $5,000:

Total Deposits Received:

Total Expenditures $5,000 and above:

MB&T Money Market Account

Interest Received: Money Market Account
Interest Received: SBA Account
Interest Received: Other Interest

Page 1
Page 11 of 147



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Friday, October 8, 2021
Title: Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions
Section & Item: 10.A
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: John W Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager, Ernie Cruz, 

Golf Manager
Attachments:
Reviewed by General 
Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Assessment of current conditions and consideration of possible new COVID-19 precautions.
 

Background and Summary Information
BBRD lifted the last COVID-19 restriction on July 1, 2021. In late July, the CDC issued additional guidance concerning 
facial coverings. On the August 13, 2021, the BOT decided to assess conditions and discuss possible precautions at each 
meeting going forward.
 
On September 10, 2021, staff implemented a temporary 30 day “one-rider per cart” rule for the Golf Course in response 
to an uptick in positive cases in BBRD and players’ concerns. Golf Operations Manager Cruz recommends not continuing 
said temporary rule and going back to the standard two-rider to a cart rule. Mr. Cruz will be at the meeting to address 
any concerns the BOT may have regarding his recommendation.
 
Staff has no other recommendations as of the date of the publication of this agenda packet (October 1, 2021).
 
Staff requests direction from the BOT regarding this matter.

Page 12 of 147



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, October 8, 2021
Title: Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease
Section & 
Item:

10.B

Department: Administration
Fiscal 
Impact:

Rental Max $20,000.00 annually Initial Term/$25,000.00 annually, each 
of two (2) Renewal Terms.

Contact: Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, General Counsel, John W Coffey, ICMA-
CM, Community Manager

Attachments
:

Draft Ground Lease Agreement BBRD and Steward Medical Group, 
Exhibit A Legal Description for Ground Lease with Parcel Sketch, Exhibit B 
Conceptual Site Plan Steward Medical Group Land Lease, Executed LOI 
December 3, 2020 Ground Lease Steward Medical Group-BBRD

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Approve Commercial Ground Lease with Steward Medical Group.
 

Background and Summary Information
BOT executed a Letter of Intent with Steward Medical Group on December 4, 2020.
 
General Counsel investigated and resolved issues regarding designation of Subject Property as a “park parcel” 
pursuant to prior Resolution 97-1 during Spring of 2021.
 
Resolution of the issue required the repeal of Resolution 97-1, which was approved August 13, 2021.

Page 13 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 1 of 32 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP 
AND 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 
 

  

Page 14 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 2 of 32 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE 1.  LEASE AGREEMENT, TERM, RENEWAL, AND RENTAL ................................................................. 4 
 SECTION 101.  PROPERTY 
 SECTION 102.  TERM AND RENEWAL 
  SUBSECTION 102.1  TERM OF LEASE 
  SUBSECTION 102.2  OPTION TO RENEW 
 SECTION 103.  USE OF PROPERTY 
  SUBSECTION 103.1.  IMPROVEMENTS TO PROPERTY 
  SUBSECTION 103.2.  DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY 
  SUBSECTION 103.3   PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 
 SECTION 104.  BASE RENT AND ADJUSTMENTS 
  SUBSECTION 104.1  BASE RENT 
  SUBSECTION 104.2  ADDITIONAL RENT FOR AD VALOREM TAXES 
  
 SECTION 105.  DELINQUENT PAYMENTS 
 
ARTICLE 2:  BBRD AND TENANT OBLIGATIONS  ................................................................................................. 8 
 SECTION 201.  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS 
 SECTION 202.  REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS 
 SECTION 203.  UTILITIES AND SITE ACCESS 
 SECTION 204.  UTILITY CHARGES 
 SECTION 205.  ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS 
 SECTION 206.  FAILURE OF TENANT TO COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION 
 SECTION 207.  ADDITIONAL COVENANTS, WARRANTIES & REPRESENTATIONS  OF BBRD 
 SECTION 208.  SIGNS 
 SECTION 209.    EXCLUSIVITY   
 
ARTICLE 3:  TAXES      ............................................................................................... 11 
 SECTION 301.  AD VALOREM TAXES 
 SECTION 302.  SOLID WASTE FEES 
 SECTION 303.  STORM WATER FEES 
 SECTION 304.  EMERGENCY AMBULANCE/EMS FEES 
 SECTION 305.  OTHER TAXES AND FEES 
  
ARTICLE 4:  INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY   ..........................................................................................12 
 SECTION 401.  LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 SECTION 402.  PROPERTY INSURANCE 
 SECTION 403.  INSURANCE CERTIFICATES 
 SECTION 404.  ADDITIONAL INSURANCE 
 SECTION 405.  COMPLIANCE 
 SECTION 406.  RIGHT TO EXAMINE 
 SECTION 407.  PERSONAL PROPERTY 
 SECTION 408.  INDEMNIFICATION 
 
ARTICLE 5:  PREVENTION OF USE OF THE PROPERTY ........................................................................................ 15 
 
ARTICLE 6:  DEFAULT  BY TENANT    ............................................................................................... 16 
 
ARTICLE 7:        DEFAULT BY BBRD      ............................................................................................... 16 
 
ARTICLE 8:  REAL ESTATE COMMISSION    ............................................................................................... 17 
 
ARTICLE 9:  IDENTITY OF INTEREST    ............................................................................................... 17 
 
ARTICLE 10:  NOTICES AND REPORTS    ............................................................................................... 17 
 
ARTICLE 11:  MEMORANDUM OF LEASE     .............................................................................................. 18 
 
ARTICLE 12:  ENTRY OF BBRD      .............................................................................................. 18 
 

Page 15 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 3 of 32 

ARTICLE 13  LEASE EXPIRATION     ............................................................................................... 18  
 
ARTICLE 14:  QUIET ENJOYMENT     ............................................................................................... 19 
 
ARTICLE 15:  BBRD POLICIES      ............................................................................................... 19 
 
ARTICLE 16:  NONDISCRIMINATION    ............................................................................................... 20 
 
ARTICLE 17:  WARRANTIES     ............................................................................................... 20 
 
ARTICLE 18:  ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING   ............................................................................................... 20 
 
ARTICLE 19:  ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND INDEMNIFICATION ........................................... 21 
 SECTION 1901.  ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS BY TENANT 
 SECTION 1902.  ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNIFICATION BY TENANT 
 
ARTICLE 20:  MORTGAGE INTEREST    ............................................................................................... 21 
 
ARTICLE 21:  ATTORNEYS FEES     ............................................................................................... 26 
 
ARTICLE 22:  OTHER PROVISIONS    ..........................................................................................27 
 SECTION 2201. REASONABLE AND GOOD FAITH 
 SECTION 2202. FORCE MAJEURE 
 SECTION 2203. HEADINGS 
 SECTION 2204. BINDING EFFECT 
 SECTION 2205. RIGHTS RESERVED 
 SECTION 2206. NO WAIVER 
 SECTION 2207. SEVERABILITY 
 SECTION 2208. INTERPRETATION OF AGREEMENT 
 SECTION 2209. NO AGENCY 
 SECTION 2210. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
 SECTION 2211. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT 
 
 
EXHIBIT A:  DESCRIPTION OF LEASE PROPERTY   ............................................................................................... 31 
 
EXHIBIT B:  TENANT CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN  ............................................................................................... 32 
 
 

Page 16 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 4 of 32 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the “Lease” or “Agreement”), made and entered 

into this                       day of                            , 2021, by and between BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 

DISTRICT, an independent special district of the State of Florida, having its principal office and place of business 

at 625 Barefoot Blvd., Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 (“BBRD” or “District”) and STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP c/o 

STEWARD HEALTH CARE SYSTEM, LLC, a corporate entity, maintaining its principal office and place of 

business at 1900 Pearl Street, Suite 2400, Dallas, Texas 75201 ("Tenant"). 

 
WITNESSETH THAT: 

 
 WHEREAS, BBRD has the exclusive right and power to lease certain Property (as herein defined) located 

in the County of Brevard, State of Florida; and, 

 WHEREAS, BBRD desires to lease to Tenant, and Tenant desires to lease from BBRD, the Property 

upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, terms and conditions herein set forth, 

the parties have agreed and do agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE 1 

LEASE AGREEMENT, TERM, RENEWAL, AND RENTAL 
 

 SECTION 101: PROPERTY.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth hereinafter, BBRD leases 

hereby to Tenant and Tenant rents hereby from BBRD, the property described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the 

"Property"), consisting of approximately .51 acres.   Exhibit A consists of both a survey sketch and legal description 

of the Property.  A copy of Tenant’s Conceptual Site Plan Aerial Illustration is attached hereto as Exhibit B 

(“Conceptual Site Plan”) and is incorporated herein by reference.  The Parties agree that this Agreement shall be 

amended to incorporate and replace the Conceptual Site Plan in Exhibit B with a copy of the Actual Site Plan (“Actual 

Site Plan”) to be submitted by Tenant to the Board of County Commissions of Brevard County (“Brevard County”) 

once final approval of the Actual Site Place is approved by Brevard County and any other appropriate regulatory 

agencies.  Tenant, its directors, officers, employees, agents, contractors, suppliers, customers, invitees and guests, 

shall have the right of ingress to and egress from the Property over adjacent property owned by  BBRD, including 

the use of the publicly dedicated rights-of-way and BBRD controlled vehicular rights-of-way adjacent to the Leased 

Property if approved by Brevard County, as part of the approval of the Actual Site Plan, subject to such reasonable 

policies, rules, and regulations as may be established by BBRD with respect to areas controlled by BBRD.  

Page 17 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 5 of 32 

 

 SECTION 102.   TERM AND RENEWAL 

  Subsection 102.1.  Term of Lease.  The Initial Term of this Lease shall be for a period of ten (10) 

years  commencing on the _____ day of _________, 20     (“Commencement Date”) and terminating on the last day 

of the one hundred twentieth (120th) month following the Commencement Date. 

  Subsection 102.2.  Option to Renew.  BBRD does hereby grant to Tenant the right, privilege and 

option to renew this Lease for two (2) additional terms of ten (10) years each, from the date of expiration of the Initial 

Term hereof upon the terms and conditions as herein contained, provided notice in writing to BBRD of Tenant’s 

intention to exercise said options is given at least one-hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the term 

hereof  (unless lack of notice is waived by BBRD) and provided that Tenant shall not be in material default under the 

terms of this Lease beyond any applicable cure period at the time of such notice and provided further that this Lease 

is then in effect.  Whenever reference is made herein to the “term” of this Lease, it shall include the Initial Term 

described in Section 102.1 above and the renewal terms described in this Subsection 102.2. 

 

 SECTION 103.  USE OF PROPERTY 

  Subsection 103.1.  Improvements to the Property.  BBRD acknowledges hereby that Tenant is 

leasing the Property for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and operating a medical clinic/facility on the 

Property, and all other facilities necessary for or related to Tenant’s present and future business, and that in order to 

utilize the Property for this purpose, it will be necessary to construct buildings and other improvements (collectively, 

“Improvements”) upon the Property and to make alterations and renovations thereto at Tenant's sole cost and expense.  

Upon the Commencement Date of this Lease, BBRD will provide authorization for Tenant to act as Applicant on its 

behalf for any required license, permit, or site plan applications.  Tenant shall be solely responsible for all costs related 

to any such applications.  Tenant shall use its best efforts to provide BBRD copies of any and all license, permit, and 

site plan applications filed with Brevard County or other regulatory agencies at least fourteen (14) days in advance 

of filing.  Tenant’s activities shall in no way interfere with the established use of BBRD adjacent commercial 

shopping center and/or its related parking. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all costs associated with the 

extension of any required utility lines necessary to serve the Leased Property and for the construction of any required 

stormwater maintenance system serving the Leased Property that arises from its Improvement/development of 

Tenant’s Improvements. BBRD will grant any required temporary easements for development purposes so long as 

Tenant shall not unreasonably interfere with BBRD business operations during the Improvement/development 

process. The parties shall reasonably coordinate Improvement/development efforts and business operations during 

Page 18 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 6 of 32 

development of the Leased Property.  Tenant shall take the subject property “AS IS” and shall be solely responsible 

for any required cost(s) and expense(s) arising from any inherent site condition that creates an impediment to 

Improvements/development. Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless BBRD from any code 

enforcement or regulatory compliance fines or assessments levied by Brevard County or any other regulatory agency 

as a result of Tenant’s noncompliance with any approved permit or site plan requirement(s). At the termination of 

this Lease and any applicable renewal term(s), BBRD shall have the option of accepting the Improvements, including 

a planned modular building or requiring its removal by Tenant. All Improvements such as parking, utilities, and 

drainage shall become property of BBRD.  Except for removal of the planned modular building, Tenant shall have 

no obligation to remove site improvements upon termination of the Lease or renewal term(s), if any. 

 For purposes of this Lease, the term “Construction Period” shall mean the period from the Commencement 

Date (as defined in Subsection 102.1 above) until the Rent Commencement Date (as defined in Subsection 104.1 

below).  Tenant shall, upon obtaining any and all necessary government permits and/or approvals, have the right to 

change, alter, raze or add to any Improvements, or any part thereof, now existing or change, alter, or add to any 

Improvements, or any part thereof hereafter erected, constructed, or installed on the Property and to remove (other 

than the planned modular building upon termination if to be retained by BBRD) the personal property (the 

“Personalty”) installed or placed by Tenant in, on, or about the Improvements on the Property.  BBRD acknowledges 

and agrees that title to all future Improvements and Personality shall not be in BBRD, but is and shall remain in 

Tenant or any sub-Tenant of Tenant during the term of this Lease.  Should BBRD accept ownership of the planned 

modular building at the expiration of the Lease Agreement, Tenant shall sign any appropriate title to such planned 

modular building over to BBRD without additional consideration. 

 Subsection 103.2.  Delivery and Acceptance of the Property.   In the event that Tenant is unable to secure 

necessary governmental approvals, permits, and licenses for the Improvements and/or Actual Site Plan within 

fifteen (15) months from the Commencement Date, then this Lease shall be null and void ab initio, and neither 

party shall have any further obligation to the other hereunder, and payments previously made by Tenant to BBRD 

shall be retained by BBRD. BBRD shall not be required to expend any money or incur any costs in assisting 

Tenant in securing approval for Improvements. BBRD does not guarantee the successful or timely issuance of 

said approvals, grants, permits, or authorizations by any governmental agency. 

Subsection 103.3. Payment and Performance Bond.  Prior to entering into any contract for the 

construction, improvement or repair of any building or structure, or for any other construction project, on the 

Property, Tenant shall require its contractor(s) to execute a payment and performance bond (“Bond”) with a surety 

insurer authorized to do business in the State of Florida as surety.  If Tenant acts as general contractor for any 

Page 19 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 7 of 32 

such project, then Tenant shall itself execute the Bond.  Upon execution, Tenant shall record the Bond in the 

Public Records of Brevard County, Florida and deliver a copy of the Bond to BBRD.  The Bond shall be 

conditioned upon the contractor’s performance of the construction work in the time and manner prescribed in the 

contract and promptly making payments to all persons defined in Florida Statute §713.01 who furnish labor, 

services, or materials for the accomplishment of the work provided for in the contract.  The Bond shall not contain 

any provision that restricts the classes of persons defined in Florida Statute §713.01, or that purports to affect the 

venue of any proceeding relating to the Bond.  The amount of the Bond shall equal the contract price.  The Bond 

must state on its front page: 1) the name, principal business address and phone number of the contractor, the 

surety, and BBRD as owner of the Property; 2) the contract number if applicable; and, 3) a description of the 

project sufficient to identify it.  The Bond shall in all other respects meet the requirements of Florida Statute 

§255.05, regardless of whether BBRD is party to the contract or whether the project constitutes a public work.  In 

lieu of the Bond required by this Subsection, a contractor may file with BBRD an alternative form of security in 

the form of cash, money order, certified check, cashier’s check or irrevocable letter of credit in an amount equal 

to the contract price.  

 

 SECTION 104.  BASE RENT AND ADJUSTMENTS 

Subsection 104.1.  Base Rent.   Except during the “Rent Abatement Period” and the 3-month 

extension thereof (if applicable), Annual base rent during the Initial Term shall be twenty thousand dollars 

($20,000.00) annually, payable by Tenant in twelve (12) equal monthly installments each year of the Initial Term. 

Except as otherwise set forth in this Section, Total base rent during the Initial Term shall be $200,000.00.  BBRD 

agrees to remit such sales tax to the State of Florida or other legal BBRD as required by law. 

Annual base rent during each Renewal Term shall be twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) 

annually, payable by Tenant in twelve (12) equal monthly installments throughout each year of the Extension Term. 

Total base rent during each Renewal Term shall be $250,000.00. 

Rent under the Lease shall be abated for a period of nine (9) months from the Commencement Date 

of the Lease (the “Rent Abatement Period”), during which Rent Abatement Period Tenant shall pursue permitting 

approval and build-out on the Leased Property. In the event a Certificate of Occupancy/Completion has not been 

issued on or before expiration of the Rent Abatement Period, Tenant shall be entitled to one (1) three (3) month 

extension of the Rent Abatement Period (for a cumulative total of twelve (12) months for build-out of Improvements). 

In the event a Certificate of Occupancy/Completion has not been issued following the 3-month extension of the Rent 

Abatement Period, rental payments shall commence at half base monthly rent effective on the first annual anniversary 

Page 20 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 8 of 32 

of the Commencement Date of the Lease for a period not to exceed three (3) months (“Half Rent Commencement 

Date”). Unless otherwise agreed to by both parties, upon the earlier of either the issuance of a Certificate of 

Occupancy/Completion or fifteen (15) months from the Commencement Date of the Lease, full rental payments shall 

commence (“Rent Commencement Date”). 
  

  Subsection 104.2.  Additional Rent for Ad Valorem Taxes.  Tenant shall pay to BBRD as additional 

monthly rent one twelfth (1/12) of the estimated annual ad valorem tax bill and any non-ad valorem fees and 

assessments on the Property, plus sales tax.  Upon determination of the actual taxes due on the Property, Tenant shall, 

within thirty (30) days of BBRD’s notice of additional sums due pursuant to the tax bill, pay any such additional 

sums owed bill to BBRD, and in the event Tenant has overpaid them, Tenant shall receive a credit toward its next 

monthly tax payment, and continue receiving a credit until the tax credit is used up.  For purposes of estimating the 

tax payments to be paid by Tenant hereunder, BBRD shall use the prior tax year billing, which the parties 

acknowledge does not included planned improvements or increase in land valuation. Payment of applicable taxes is 

addressed further in Article 3 to this Lease. 

 

 SECTION 105.  DELINQUENT PAYMENTS.  If any rent payment is not received by BBRD within 

five (5) days after such payment is due, then a delinquent fee of one and one half percent (1.5%) of the actual 

undisputed past due amount shall be added to the rent payment and shall be paid by Tenant to BBRD.  Tenant’s 

failure to pay any installment of rent within thirty (30) days after the installment is due shall constitute an event 

of default under the terms of the Lease. 

 
ARTICLE 2 

BBRD AND TENANT OBLIGATIONS 
 

 SECTION 201.  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.  Tenant agrees that the business to be operated by 

it on the Property will not be operated in such a manner as to constitute a nuisance (based upon the usage of 

surrounding land on the Commencement Date) or a hazard and that in connection with the operation of the business, 

Tenant will substantially observe and comply with all applicable material laws, ordinances, orders and regulations 

applicable to the business operated by Tenant on the Property.  BBRD warrants and represents that on the 

Commencement Date, the Property is in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances, orders, and 

regulations (Laws, including, without limitation, Laws regarding Hazardous Wastes). 

 

Page 21 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 9 of 32 

 SECTION 202.  REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS.  BBRD shall not be obligated to maintain the Property 

or the Improvements thereon during the Lease term or any renewal hereof unless required due to the negligence or 

willful act of BBRD. 

 Tenant agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to maintain all of the Improvements, including any parking 

and service areas, in a good state of repair and to keep the Property in a reasonably clean, neat and orderly 

condition. 

 

 SECTION 203. UTILITIES AND SITE ACCESS.  BBRD will cooperate with the Tenant in allowing the 

Tenant access to the adjacent shopping center property owned by BBRD for the purpose of the Tenant’s preparation 

of required engineering studies and application process necessary to extend utilities and transportation access to the 

Leased Property.  The capacity and availability of public and private utilities is not guaranteed by BBRD.  Further, 

BBRD cannot guarantee approvals for road entrances, traffic island crossovers, signalization, turning lanes, 

acceleration lanes, etc. or any other traffic control items required by Brevard County.  In the event a critical utility 

(potable water, sewer, electricity, and/or telecommunications) or adequate transportation access cannot be made 

available to the Property within fifteen (15) months of the Commencement Date, Tenant may terminate this Lease 

without prejudice.  Unless otherwise stated in the Lease, Tenant is responsible for all costs associated with the 

extension of utilities, both public and private, to the Property and Improvements necessary to provide transportation 

access.  

Tenant shall have the right to grant any easements, rights of way, and licenses required by any public or quasi-

public utility company with respect to the construction, operation and use of the Improvements and Personalty.  

BBRD shall execute any instruments any such public or quasi-public utility companies may reasonably request or 

require from BBRD; provided, however, that in each case such easement, right of way or license (i) does not 

materially impair the value, utility and remaining useful life of the Property, (ii) is reasonably necessary in connection 

with the construction, operation or use of the Improvements and the Personalty, and (iii) does not cause the Property 

or any portion thereof to fail to comply with all material requirements of law.   

 

SECTION 204. UTILITY CHARGES.  Tenant shall be responsible for charges for electricity, water, sewer, 

solid waste, or any other utility or service consumed in connection with the occupancy of the Property by Tenant.   

 

SECTION 205. ADDITIONAL TENANT OBLIGATIONS.  Brevard County will determine if the 

Improvements are of sufficient size to require a transportation concurrency study and/or other traffic access 

Page 22 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 10 of 32 

studies.  Tenant is responsible for all studies and costs associated with this requirement, as well as the assessments 

and improvements required by Brevard County.  In addition, Tenant is responsible for all transportation, utility 

and other impact fees associated with this project levied by Brevard County. 

 

 SECTION 206.  FAILURE OF TENANT TO COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION.   

 A. Tenant shall substantially complete construction of the Improvements on before fifteen (15) 

months from the Commencement Date of this Lease unless the delay in construction was caused by elements of 

Force Majeure in which event this period shall be extended by BBRD for a reasonable length of time to allow 

Tenant to complete the construction of its Improvements.    

 B.   In the event Tenant fails to complete said Improvements by the date specified herein or the date of 

any extensions granted by BBRD, then BBRD shall have the right to terminate this Lease without obligation of 

BBRD to pay Tenant any compensation for work performed and funds expended prior to such termination, 

provided, however, that BBRD delivers written notice to Tenant at least (90) ninety days in advance of the 

termination date specified in the notice and giving Tenant the opportunity to cure the development failure within 

said ninety day period.  

 

 SECTION 207.  ADDITIONAL COVENANTS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS OF 

BBRD.   BBRD warrants and represents that there are (i) no mortgages, liens or encumbrances, (ii) no covenants or 

restrictions, and (iii) no agreements with third parties, which may prevent or impair BBRD from performing any of 

its covenants under this Lease. 

 

 SECTION 208.  SIGNS.  Tenant shall have the right to erect and maintain such sign or signs on the Property 

and Improvements as may be permitted by applicable law. 

 

 SECTION 209.  EXCLUSIVITY.   Except for that certain lease between BBRD and Shaw Medical Group, 

LLC with a commencement date of August 1, 2020 (the "Nurse Practitioner Lease"), and as such Nurse Practitioner 

Lease may be amended or renewed, BBRD agrees that the provision of professional medical services shall at all times 

during the Initial Term or any Renewal Termbe exclusive to Tenant.  Except for the Nurse Practitioner Lease, and as 

such Nurse Practitioner Lease may be amended or renewed, BBRD agrees it shall not enter into a medical office 

space lease with a medical service provider other than Shaw Medical Group during the Initial Term or any renewal 

Page 23 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 11 of 32 

Term, nor shall BBRD allow any shopping center tenants to assign and/or change use of their respective Leased 

Property in a manner that competes with Tenant. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

TAXES 
 
 SECTION 301.  AD VALOREM TAXES.  Tenant shall pay according to the method hereinabove described 

all ad valorem taxes levied or assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, by the appropriate governmental authorities 

as a result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the property pursuant to this Lease, whether the billing is addressed to 

BBRD or Tenant, together with all taxes levied against any stock of merchandise, furniture, furnishings, equipment 

and other property located in, on or upon the Property.   

 Tenant shall have the right to contest the validity or amount of any ad valorem tax imposed against the 

Property and the Improvements at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, however, Tenant’s contest of the validity of 

any tax imposed against the Property and Improvements shall not relieve Tenant of its obligation to pay the 

monthly tax payments called for in Section 104.2 above.  In the event Tenant is successful in its contest of the tax 

and as a result the tax is changed, then BBRD agrees to adjust the monthly tax payment due to reflect the new tax 

assessment, and Tenant agrees to pay any sums necessary to bring the monthly payments on deposit with BBRD 

to an amount sufficient to pay the annual tax bill when it comes due.  Upon adjudication (including all appeals) 

of such contest, Tenant shall pay all court costs, interest, penalties and other expenses related to the appeal. 

 

 SECTION 302.  SOLID WASTE FEES.  Tenant shall pay according to the method hereinabove described, 

all solid waste fees assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, by the appropriate governmental authorities as a 

result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Property pursuant to this Lease, whether the billing is addressed to BBRD 

or Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 303.   STORM WATER FEES.  Tenant shall pay according to the method hereinabove 

described, all storm water fees assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, by the appropriate governmental 

authorities as a result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Property pursuant to this Lease, whether the billing is 

addressed to BBRD or Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 304.   EMERGENCY AMBULANCE/EMS FEES.  Tenant shall pay according to the 

method hereinabove described, all emergency ambulance/EMS fees assessed against the Property, plus sales tax, 

Page 24 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 12 of 32 

by the appropriate governmental authorities as a result of Tenant’s occupancy or use of the Property pursuant to 

this Lease, whether the billing is addressed to BBRD or Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 305. OTHER TAXES AND FEES. Tenant shall pay as a result of Tenant’s occupancy 

or use of the property pursuant to this Lease, according to the method described above, any and all taxes, fees, or 

assessments, plus sales tax, that may be levied and not know at this time. 

 
ARTICLE 4 

INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY 
 
 SECTION 401.  LIABILITY INSURANCE.  In addition to such insurances as may be required by law, 

Tenant shall maintain, without lapse or material chance, for so long as it occupies the Property and Improvements, 

the following insurance: 

 (A)   Commercial General Liability Insurance, including Contractual Liability, to cover Tenant’s 

Property and Improvements and operations, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per 

occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  BBRD must be shown as an additional insured with respect 

to this coverage.  Coverages shall be for each occurrence, with either no aggregate or an annual policy aggregate 

of no less than twice the amount of coverage required for each occurrence.  In the event that Tenant’s available 

coverage falls below the per occurrence amount shown above, Tenant shall secure a new certificate of insurance 

evidencing the required coverage.   

 (B)   Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles (including 

ground or mobile equipment) used by Tenant in connection with its operations under this Agreement in an amount 

not less than: 

  (1)  $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage 

covering all vehicles and ground and mobile equipment used by Tenant in connection with its business operation; 

and/or 

  (2)  $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage 

covering such vehicles being used by Tenant on the Leased Property. 

 (C)   The insurance coverages required shall include those classifications, as listed in standard liability 

insurance manuals, which most nearly reflect the operations of Tenant under this Agreement.  All insurance 

policies required pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be issued in companies approved to do business 

under the laws of the State of Florida.  Such companies must be rated no less than “A” as to management, and no 

Page 25 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 13 of 32 

less than “V” as to strength in accordance with the latest edition of “Best’s Insurance Guide”, published by A.M. 

Best Company, Inc., or its equivalent, subject to approval of BBRD’s General Counsel. 

 

 SECTION 402.  PROPERTY INSURANCE: 

 (A)   Builders Risk and Hazard Insurance:  Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, throughout the term of 

this Agreement, shall keep the Improvements insured on an “All Risk” basis in an amount not less than 100% of 

the full replacement value of the Improvements against loss or damage (in excess of a reasonable per occurrence 

deductible amount, which shall be the responsibility of Tenant) by fire, lightning, tornado, hurricane, windstorm, 

hail, flood, earthquake, explosion, riot, riot attending strike, civil commotion, vandalism and malicious mischief, 

sprinklers and sprinkler leakage, aircraft, vehicles and smoke, or any other casualty in an amount not less than 

100% of the full replacement value of the Improvements to the extent such coverage is commercially available at 

commercially reasonable rates.  The full replacement value of the Improvements shall be established as of the 

Commencement Date of this Lease and shall be established at intervals of not more than three (3) years thereafter, 

by any professional property evaluators used by BBRD for establishing replacement values for BBRD property.  

Any deficiency in the amount of the proceeds from such property insurance resulting from a failure by Tenant to 

re-establish the full replacement value of the Improvements shall be the sole responsibility of Tenant.  In addition, 

BBRD shall be shown on the policies as a loss payee. 

  (1)   Damage or Destruction and Restoration of the Improvements:  In case of damage to or loss 

of all or a portion of the Improvements, Tenant shall give prompt notice thereof to BBRD; and,  Tenant shall 

promptly commence and complete with due diligence (subject only to delays beyond its reasonable control), the 

restoration of the damaged or destroyed portion of the Improvements as nearly as reasonably practicable to the 

value and condition thereof immediately prior to such damage or destruction.  In the event of such damage or 

destruction, the proceeds of all property insurance policies shall be used to restore the facility to make it function 

for the uses permitted under Article 1.  Tenant shall receive reimbursement from the proceeds of all property 

insurance policies for the Improvements and shall be obligated to provide any additional monies necessary for 

such restoration. 

 (B)   Business Interruption Insurance:  Tenant at its sole cost and expense throughout the term of this 

Agreement, shall maintain business interruption insurance at a minimum, in an amount sufficient to continue 

making land rental, and payments of taxes and insurance, during the rebuilding period as a result of damage to 

the Improvements. 

 

Page 26 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 14 of 32 

 SECTION 403.  INSURANCE CERTIFICATES:  Prior to the commencement of operations hereunder 

and annually thereafter, Tenant shall furnish or cause to be furnished certificates of insurance to BBRD which 

certificates shall clearly indicate that: 

 

(A)   Tenant has obtained insurance in the types, amounts and classifications as required for strict 

compliance with this Article; 

(B)  The policy cancellation notification provisions specify at least thirty (30) days advance written 

notice of cancellation to BBRD; 

(C)   BBRD is named as an additional insured with respect to Tenant’s commercial general liability 

policies; 

(D)   BBRD is named as a loss payee with respect to Tenant’s builder’s risk and property insurance 

policies; and 

   (E)   On said insurance certificates, liability coverage shall include contractual liability and 

notification of cancellation. 

 

 SECTION 404.   ADDITIONAL INSURANCE:  In addition to the types and levels of coverage 

provided in this Article, BBRD reserves the right to require Tenant to provide additional types of coverage and/or 

different or higher levels of coverage from time to time during this Agreement, upon issuance of notice in writing 

to Tenant, which notice shall automatically amend this Agreement effective 90 days after such notice. If such 

coverage is not commercially available, reasonable documentation with respect thereto shall be provided by 

Tenant to BBRD.  

 

 SECTION 405. COMPLIANCE:  Compliance with the requirements of this Article 4 shall not relieve 

Tenant of its liability under any other portion of this Agreement or any other agreement between BBRD and 

Tenant. 

 

 SECTION 406.  RIGHT TO EXAMINE:  BBRD reserves the right, upon reasonable notice, to examine 

true copies of applicable portions of policies of insurance (including but not limited to binders, amendments, 

exclusions, riders and applications) to determine the true extent of coverage.  Tenant agrees to permit such 

inspection at the offices of BBRD. 

 

Page 27 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 15 of 32 

 SECTION 407.  PERSONAL PROPERTY:  Any personal property of Tenant or of others placed on 

the Property and Improvements  shall be at the sole risk of Tenant or the owners thereof, and BBRD shall not be 

liable for any loss or damage, except to the extent such loss or damage was caused by the negligence or willful 

misconduct of the BBRD, as limited by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

 SECTION 408.  INDEMNIFICATION.  Tenant shall indemnify and hold harmless BBRD and its 

Trustees, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, and instrumentalities from any and all liability, losses or 

damages, including attorneys’ fees and costs of defense, that BBRD or its Trustees, officers, employees, agents, 

attorneys or instrumentalities may be subject to as a result of claims, demands, suits, causes of action or 

proceedings of any kind or nature arising out of, relating to or resulting from the performance of this Agreement 

by Tenant, the Tenant’s business activities, and/or the actions of Tenant’s employees, agents, servants, partners, 

principals, contractors, subcontractors, sub-Tenants, or invitees.  Tenant shall pay all claims and losses in 

connection therewith and shall investigate and defend all claims, suits or action of any kind or nature in the name 

of BBRD, where applicable, including appellate proceedings, and shall pay costs, judgments and attorney’s fees 

which may issue thereon.  Tenant expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by this 

Agreement or otherwise provided by Tenant shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save 

harmless and defend BBRD or its Trustees, officers, employees, agents, attorneys, and instrumentalities as herein 

provided. The obligation of Tenant hereunder shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  Such payment on 

behalf of BBRD shall be in addition to any and all legal remedies available to BBRD and shall not be considered 

to be BBRD’s exclusive remedy.  In agreeing to this provision, BBRD does not intend to waive any defense or 

limit of sovereign immunity to which it may be entitled under Section 768.28, Florida Statutes or otherwise 

provided. 

ARTICLE 5 
PREVENTION OF USE OF THE PROPERTY 

If, after the effective date of this Lease, Tenant is precluded or prevented from constructing or operating the 

Improvements on the Property as contemplated by Tenant by reason of any zoning law, zoning ordinance or zoning 

regulation of any public BBRD having jurisdiction over the Property, and such prohibition shall continue for a period 

of at least ninety (90) days, then Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving to BBRD not less than thirty (30) days 

prior written notice of termination. 

 
ARTICLE 6 

DEFAULT BY TENANT 

Page 28 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 16 of 32 

 
 As used in this Lease, the term "event of default" shall mean any of the following: 

(A) The failure of Tenant to fulfill any duty or obligation imposed on Tenant by this Lease;  

(B)  The filing by Tenant of a petition or other request for any remedy or relief under the U.S. 

Bankruptcy Code, the appointment of a receiver over Tenant or Tenant’s assets, an assignment by Tenant for the 

benefit of creditors, or the participation by Tenant in any insolvency proceeding including the filing of an 

involuntary petition under 11 U.S.C. §303 that is not dismissed within ninety (90) days; without limiting the 

foregoing, this Subsection would apply to any ancillary proceedings or related relief in any insolvency type 

proceeding in any jurisdiction in the world;   

(C) The taking or the attempted taking of the Tenant’s leasehold interest hereunder pursuant to an 

execution on a judgment or otherwise.  

 Upon the happening of any event of default under paragraphs “(B)” or “(C)” of this Article 6, or upon 

Tenant’s failure to pay rent when due hereunder, BBRD may, at its option, immediately terminate this Lease and 

evict Tenant therefrom without prejudice to any other remedy.  However, upon the happening of an event of 

default under “(A)” of this Article 6, except for the failure to pay rent before the exercise of such option, BBRD 

shall give written notice of such event to Tenant, which shall have thirty (30) days thereafter within which to 

remedy or correct such default. 

ARTICLE 7 
DEFAULT BY BBRD 

 
 If BBRD fails to perform any of its covenants, agreements or other obligations under this Lease, 

and such failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt by BBRD of written notice of such failure, 

or in the event of emergency promptly after written notice, then Tenant shall have the right (but not the obligation) 

to take such actions, and to expend such monies, after BBRD’s approval of the written quote for such expenditures 

prior to Tenant authorizing the expenditure, as Tenant reasonably deems necessary or appropriate to perform 

BBRD’s covenants, agreements or obligations and BBRD provides written notification it cannot remedy such 

failure.  In such event, Tenant shall be entitled to set-off against base rent otherwise due hereunder all amounts 

which Tenant expends to perform BBRD’s obligations.  The foregoing rights of self-help and set-off shall be in 

addition to, not in lieu of, any rights and remedies which Tenant has at law, in equity or under this Lease. 

 

ARTICLE 8 
REAL ESTATE COMMISSION 

 

Page 29 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 17 of 32 

 BBRD and Tenant covenant and warrant one each to the other that it has not authorized any person, firm or 

corporation as a real estate agent or broker to deal on behalf of BBRD with Tenant or Tenant with BBRD, and BBRD 

and Tenant agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from any claim for remuneration, commissions or 

broker’s fees arising out of this transaction and Lease. 
 

ARTICLE 9 
IDENTITY OF INTEREST 

 
 The execution of this Lease or the performance of any act pursuant to the provisions hereof shall not be 

deemed or construed to have the effect of creating between BBRD and Tenant the relationship of principal and agent 

or of a partnership or of a joint venture, and the relationship between them shall be and remain only that of BBRD 

and Tenant. 

 
ARTICLE 10 

NOTICES AND REPORTS 
 

 Any notice, report, statement, approval, consent, designation, demand or request to be given or any option 

or election to be exercised by a party under the provision of this Lease shall be effective only when received and 

when made in writing and delivered (or mailed by registered or certified mail with postage prepaid or by Federal 

Express to the other party at the following address: 

  
 BBRD:    John Coffey, ICMA-CM 
     Community Manager 
     Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
     625 Barefoot Blvd.  
     Barefoot Bay, Florida 32934 
 
 Tenant:    Sanjay K. Shetty, MD 
     Executive Vice President 
     Steward Medical Group 
     c/o Steward Health Care System 
     1900 N. Pearl Street 
     Suite 2400 
     Dallas, TX 75201      
 
Provided, however, that either party may designate a different address from time to time by giving to the other party 

notice in writing of the change.  Rental payments to BBRD shall be made by Tenant at BBRD's address provided 

herein. 

Page 30 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 18 of 32 

ARTICLE 11 
MEMORANDUM OF LEASE 

 
 Either party may file a Memorandum of the Lease with the Property Appraiser’s Office or have the Lease 

recorded by the Clerk of Court at the filing or recording party’s sole expense.  

 

ARTICLE 12 
ENTRY OF BBRD 

 
 BBRD may enter the Property during business hours with reasonable advance notice (not less than three 

(3) business days, except in emergencies constituting an immediate threat to life or property) and subject to 

Tenant’s security rules and regulations:  

 (A) To inspect or protect said Property; 

 (B) To determine whether Tenant is complying (as required under this Lease) with the applicable laws, 

orders or regulations of any lawful BBRD having jurisdiction over the Property or any business conducted therein; 

or 

 (C) To exhibit the said Property to any prospective purchaser when Tenant is in default of this Lease or 

has notified BBRD of intention to terminate this Lease or during the last six (6) months of the Initial Term or any 

Renewal Termof this Lease. 

 No authorized entry by BBRD shall constitute an eviction of Tenant or a deprivation of its rights or alter the 

obligation of BBRD or create any right in BBRD adverse to the interest of Tenant hereunder, provided BBRD shall 

not unreasonably interfere with Tenant’s use and occupancy of the Property or Tenant’s business operations. 

 
ARTICLE 13 

LEASE EXPIRATION 
 

 At the expiration of the Lease, all improvements erected on the Property shall become the sole 

property of BBRD.  Any and all trade fixtures, signs, and other personal property placed on the Property by Tenant 

(other than the planned modular building) shall remain Tenant's sole property, and Tenant shall have the right to 

remove the same within ten (10) days after expiration of the Lease, provided any damages caused by such removal 

are repaired by Tenant at the time of removal.  In the event Tenant fails to remove its personal property within ten 

(10) days after expiration of the Lease, said failure to remove shall be deemed to be an abandonment of the property.  

In the event of such abandonment, BBRD shall have the right to remove and sell or dispose of the personal property 

without providing Tenant with any notice of removal, sale, or disposal of the personal property, and without any 

Page 31 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 19 of 32 

liability to the Tenant. All monies received from any sale or disposal of the personal property by BBRD shall first be 

used to reimburse BBRD for any expenses incurred including without limitation attorney’s fees and costs of all kind 

and nature, and the balance remaining after setting off any sums still owed by Tenant to BBRD shall be remitted to 

the Tenant.  BBRD shall have the option of accepting the modular building or requiring its removal by Tenant at the 

expiration or termination of this Lease.  Should BBRD accept ownership of the planned modular building at the 

expiration of the Lease Agreement, Tenant shall sign any appropriate title to such planned modular building over to 

BBRD without additional consideration. 

 

ARTICLE 14 
QUIET ENJOYMENT 

 
 Subject to the provisions of this Lease, BBRD covenants that Tenant, on paying the rent and performing 

the covenants of this Lease on its part to be performed, shall and may peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy 

the Property for the term of this Lease.  BBRD represents that it has the authority to execute this Lease and that 

it has obtained all necessary governmental authorizations or approvals to execute this Lease and that this Lease 

constitutes a valid and binding obligation of BBRD, enforceable against BBRD in accordance with its terms. 

 
 

ARTICLE 15 
BBRD POLICIES  

 From time to time, BBRD may adopt and amend Policies with respect to the occupancy and use of the 

Property. Tenant shall observe and obey such Policies and shall require its officers, agents, employees, subtenants, 

contractors, and suppliers, to observe and obey the same.  BBRD reserves the right to deny access to the Property to 

any person or entity that fails or refuses to obey and comply with such Policies, or any applicable laws.  BBRD’s 

Policies will not be inconsistent with the terms of this Lease, nor with BBRD’s governing documents, nor with any 

Brevard County Ordinance.  Tenant shall be furnished a current copy of BBRD's Policy Manual and any amendments 

thereto within ten (10) days of the Commencement Date of this Lease Agreement.   

 

ARTICLE 16 
NONDISCRIMINATION 

 
  Tenant covenants and agrees, as a covenant running with the land comprising the Property, that it will 

not discriminate against anyone in any protected class including, but not limited to race, creed, color, national origin, 

religion, gender, or sexual orientation pursuant to any title of the of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 applicable to BBRD, 

Page 32 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 20 of 32 

and as said regulations may be amended. 

  

ARTICLE 17 
WARRANTIES 

 
 BBRD warrants that upon commencement of the Lease term, the Property will be free and clear of all 

encumbrances except ad valorem taxes for the current calendar year and easements and restrictions of record; that 

there are no easements and/or restrictions of record or otherwise, which will (i) impair, preclude or adversely 

affect Tenant’s use and development of the Property, as contemplated by this Lease, (ii) interfere with Tenant’s 

rights under this Lease, or (iii) interfere with BBRD’s ability to perform its covenants and obligations under this 

Lease; that BBRD has full power and BBRD to execute this Lease and that it will warrant and defend the leasehold 

interest created hereby against all parties whomsoever and that Tenant upon observing and complying with the 

terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease shall enjoy the use and occupancy of the Property during the Lease 

term and any renewals thereof. 

 
ARTICLE 18 

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 
 
 Tenant shall not assign this Lease or sublet the Leased Property or any portion thereof, or otherwise transfer 

any right or interest hereunder, without the prior written consent of BBRD, which consent shall not be unreasonably 

withheld or delayed. If BBRD consents to the assignment, subletting, or other transfer of any right or interest 

hereunder by Tenant, such approval shall be limited to the particular instance specified in the consent and Tenant 

shall not be relieved of any duty, obligation, or liability under the provisions of this Lease. In the event Tenant wishes 

to assign this Lease to another party, and BBRD consents to the assignment there will be a $2,500 administrative fee 

charged to Tenant. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 19 
ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
SECTION 1901. ENVIRONMENTAL REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY TENANT. 

Tenant represents and warrants that it will comply and will be in compliance in all material respects with all 

Page 33 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 21 of 32 

applicable environmental laws, ordinances, orders or decree of all state, federal, municipal, or other governmental 

body or agency, as it relates to the subject Property. 

 Tenant further warrants that no hazardous or toxic waste or hazardous substances (as defined in the 

Comprehensive Environmental Compensation and Liability act of 1980, as amended, the Resources Conservation 

and Recovery act of 1986, as amended, or any successor or similar law) will be processed, discharged, stored, treated, 

disposed of or managed by Tenant, its assigns, subtenants, agents or contractors at the Property subject to this Lease 

other than in accordance with all federal, state and local environmental laws, regulations, codes or ordinances. 

 

SECTION 1902. ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNIFICATION BY TENANT. Tenant hereby agrees 

to indemnify, defend and hold BBRD harmless from and against any and all claims, lawsuits, losses, liabilities, 

damages, and expenses (including without limitations cleanup costs and reasonable attorney’s fees arising by 

reason of the aforesaid or an action against Tenant under this indemnity) resulting directly or indirectly from, out 

of or by reason of (i) any Hazardous Waste being located on the Property which is attributed to Tenant, its officers, 

directors, employees, agents, assigns, subtenants, guest, invitees, contractors, or subcontractors, or (ii) any breach 

of Section 1901 or (iii) an Environmental Complaint occurring as a result of occupancy of the Property by Tenant, 

its subtenants or assigns. “Environmental Complaint” as used in the Lease means any complaint, order, citation 

or notice from a governmental or private person or entity with regard to any federal, state or local environmental 

and safety laws, regulations, codes or ordinances.  

 

ARTICLE 20 
MORTGAGE INTEREST 

 
 Notwithstanding any provision of this Lease agreement to the contrary, the provisions herein-after set forth 

shall apply to the holder of record of a first mortgage on Tenant's interest herein: 

 (A) Tenant shall have the right to mortgage Tenant's interest under this Lease to a federal or state savings 

and loan association, bank or trust company, insurance company, pension fund or trust or other institutional lender 

authorized to make leasehold mortgage loans in the State of Florida without obtaining the prior consent of BBRD, 

subject, however, to the other terms and conditions of this Lease. 

 (B) If Tenant shall mortgage its leasehold interest and if the holder of the mortgage shall forward to 

BBRD a copy of the recorded Mortgage together with a written notice setting forth the name and address of the 

leasehold mortgagee, then, until the time that the leasehold mortgage shall be satisfied or record, the following 

provisions of this paragraph shall apply. 

Page 34 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 22 of 32 

 (C) When giving notice to Tenant with respect to any default under the provisions of this lease, including 

the failure of Tenant to pay rent, BBRD will also serve a copy of such notice upon the leasehold mortgagee(s), 

which copy shall be sent by BBRD by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, to such mortgagee(s), which notice 

must specify the nature of each such default. 

 (D) The leasehold mortgagee, upon receipt from BBRD of the notice referred to in subparagraph (C) 

above, shall have, in addition to any period of grace extended to Tenant under the terms and conditions of this Lease, 

a period of sixty (60) days within which to cure the default or cause the same to be cured, or to commence to cure 

such default with diligence and continuity; provided, however, that as to any default of Tenant for failure to pay 

rent, the leasehold mortgagee shall be given written notice of such default by certified mail by BBRD, and the 

leasehold mortgagee shall have thirty (30) additional days from the date the notice of default was mailed within 

which to cure such default. 

 (E) In case Tenant shall default under any of the provisions of this Lease, the leasehold mortgagee shall 

have the right to cure such default, whether the same consists of the failure to pay rent or the failure to perform any 

other matter or thing which Tenant is required to do or perform, and BBRD shall accept such performance on the 

part of the leasehold mortgagee as though the same had been done or performed by Tenant.  BBRD further agrees, 

that in the case of any default by Tenant, so long as no default in respect of the payment of rent shall exist hereunder, 

that BBRD will take no action to effect a termination of the term of this Lease by the serving of a notice by reason 

of any such default, without first giving to the leasehold mortgagee a reasonable time, not to exceed sixty (60) days 

from the mailing of notice by BBRD, except payment of rent which shall be cured by leasehold mortgagee within 

thirty (30) days of mailing of notice, within which to cure said defaults [(i) to obtain possession of the premises 

(including possession by receiver) and cure such default in the case of a default which is susceptible of being cured 

when the leasehold mortgagee has obtained possession; or (ii) to institute foreclosure, or otherwise acquire Tenant's 

interest under this Lease, with diligence and continuity and, thereafter to commence and diligently proceed to cure 

such default; provided, however, that the leasehold mortgagee shall not be required to continue such possession or 

continue such foreclosure proceedings if the default which would have been the reason for serving such a notice 

shall be cured, and provided further, that nothing herein shall preclude BBRD from exercising any rights or remedies 

under this Lease with respect to any other default by Tenant during any period of such forbearance.]  BBRD agrees 

to recognize the leasehold mortgagee as Tenant under this Lease for so long as the leasehold mortgagee holds this 

Lease as a result of a foreclosure of its mortgage or as a result of the assignment of this Lease in lieu of foreclosure, 

or otherwise, whereupon such leasehold mortgagee shall immediately become and remain liable under this Lease, 

except as provided below without having to obtain the consent of BBRD to same.  In such event, the term "Tenant" 

Page 35 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 23 of 32 

as used in this section, means only the owner or holder of Tenant's interest for the time being so that in the event of 

a sale, assignment or other disposition of Tenant's interest in this Lease by the leasehold mortgagee, the mortgagee 

shall be entirely freed and released of all covenants and obligations of Tenant under this Lease. 

 (F) References in this lease to acquisition of Tenant's interest in this lease by the leasehold mortgagee 

shall be deemed to refer, where circumstances require, to acquisition of Tenant's interest in this lease by any 

purchaser at a sale on foreclosure of the leasehold mortgage, and all provisions to the leasehold mortgagee in such 

instance or instances shall also be applicable to any such purchaser. 

 (G) Any leasehold mortgage shall be specifically subject and subordinate to BBRD's rights under this 

lease.  The foregoing shall not be deemed or construed to impose or establish upon Tenant's interest in this Lease or 

upon the lien of any leasehold mortgage the superiority of any lien or encumbrance, including, without limitation, 

the lien of any fee mortgage, judgment or tax created directly or indirectly by, through or against BBRD or BBRD's 

interest in this Lease. 

 (H) In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Article and any other provision 

of this Lease, the terms of this Article shall control. 

 (I) Within ten (10) days after written request by Tenant or Tenant's leasehold mortgage, or in the event 

that upon any sale, assignment or mortgage of Tenant's interest in this Lease by Tenant or Tenant's leasehold 

mortgagee, an estoppel certificate shall be required from BBRD, BBRD agrees to deliver in recordable form an 

estoppel certificate to any proposed leasehold mortgagee, purchaser or assignee, or to Tenant certifying (if such be 

the case): (i) the amount of rental and additional rental due under the Lease, if any, and the date to which rentals 

have been paid; (ii) that this Lease is in full force and effect; (iii) that BBRD has no knowledge of any default under 

this Lease or if any default exists, specifying the nature of the default; and (iv) that there are no defenses or offsets 

which may be asserted by BBRD against Tenant in respect of obligations pursuant to this Lease or if defenses or 

offsets exist specifying the nature of such offsets or defenses. 

 (J) BBRD agrees that the leasehold mortgagee need not pay or otherwise satisfy any claim, the lien of 

which would be extinguished upon the conclusion of foreclosure proceedings brought by the leasehold mortgagee, 

nor shall leasehold mortgagee be required to cure any default relating to the insolvency, financial condition or 

bankruptcy of Tenant, nor shall BBRD be entitled to terminate this Lease, accelerate the rent or exercise any other 

remedy under this Lease for any reason including as a consequence of Tenant's refusal, inability or failure to assume 

and affirm this Lease as an asset of Tenant's bankruptcy estate so long as, within sixty (60) days following the 

leasehold mortgagee's acquisition of title to the Property following a foreclosure of the leasehold mortgagee's 

mortgage on the Property or through a Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure, the leasehold mortgagee commences to cure 

Page 36 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 24 of 32 

defaults required to be cured by it under the language above in this paragraph and thereafter diligently prosecutes 

the same and any notice of termination theretofore given shall be void and of no force and effect.  BBRD further 

acknowledges and agrees that if, during the course of a bankruptcy proceeding involving Tenant as Debtor, Tenant 

rejects or otherwise fails to assume and affirm this Lease as an asset of Tenant's bankruptcy estate, this Lease shall 

not terminate and the leasehold mortgagee may, within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice from BBRD of 

such rejection or other failure to assume this Lease and the irreversible release of such leasehold estate from Tenant's 

bankruptcy estate, assume this Lease by effecting a cure of the defaults required to be cured by the leasehold 

mortgagee under the language above in this paragraph and thereafter preserve the same.  BBRD further agrees that 

in the event the leasehold mortgagee forecloses its leasehold interest in the property or assigns Tenant's leasehold 

interest to a third party, BBRD will not terminate the Lease solely on account of any event of default relating to the 

insolvency, financial condition or bankruptcy of Tenant, including, without limitation, Tenant's refusal, inability or 

failure to assume and affirm the Lease as an asset of Tenant's bankruptcy estate, in which event, BBRD shall 

recognize the leasehold mortgagee as Tenant under the Ground Lease.  BBRD further agrees that the leasehold 

mortgagee may, pending foreclosure of its mortgage, take possession of the Property by and through its 

representative or receiver, as the leasehold mortgagee may elect and, provided it does so in accordance with the 

terms and provisions of the Lease, administer the Leased Property as if it were Tenant thereunder. 

 (K) If Tenant, or any trustee of Tenant, shall reject the Lease pursuant to Section 365(h) of the 

Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 101, et seq (the "Bankruptcy Code"), (i) Tenant shall without further act or deed be 

deemed to have elected under Section 365(h) (1) of the Bankruptcy Code to remain in possession of the Property 

for the balance of the term of the Lease, (ii) any exercise or attempted exercise by Tenant of a right to treat the Lease 

as terminated under Section 365(h)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code shall be void and (iii) neither the Mortgage nor any 

other aspect of the Loan shall be affected or impaired by rejection of the Lease.  (For the purposes of Section 365(h) 

of the Bankruptcy Code, the term "possession" shall mean the right to possession of the Property granted to Tenant 

under the Lease notwithstanding that all or part of such Property shall have been subleased.) 

 (L) If, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (J) above, the leasehold mortgagee reasonably 

determines that a new lease will be necessary to give legal or practical effect to the unimpaired or unaffected 

continuation of the leasehold mortgage, BBRD will enter into a new lease ("New Lease") of the Property.  In the 

event of termination of the Lease as a result of Tenant's default, or otherwise, without the prior written consent of 

leasehold mortgagee, BBRD shall, in addition to providing the notices of default and termination as required by 

subparagraph (C) above, provide the leasehold mortgagee with written notice that the Lease has been terminated 

together with a statement of all sums which would at the time be due under the Lease, but for such termination, and 

Page 37 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 25 of 32 

of all other defaults, if any, then known to BBRD.  BBRD agrees to enter into a new lease ("New Lease") of the 

Property with the leasehold mortgagee or its designee for the remainder of the term of the Lease effective, as of the 

date of termination, at the rent and additional rent, and upon the terms, covenants and conditions (including all 

options to renew but excluding requirements which are not applicable or which have already been fulfilled) of the 

Lease, provided: 

  (i)  leasehold mortgagee shall make written request upon BBRD for such New Lease within sixty 

(60) days after the date leasehold mortgagee receives BBRD's notice of termination of the Ground Lease; 

  (ii)  leasehold mortgagee or its designee shall pay or cause to be paid to BBRD at the time of the 

execution and delivery of such New Lease, any and all sums which would at the time of execution and delivery 

thereof be due pursuant to the Lease but for such termination and, in addition thereto, all reasonable expenses, 

including reasonable attorneys fees, which BBRD shall have incurred by reason of termination and the execution 

and delivery of the New Lease and which have not otherwise been received by BBRD from Tenant or other parties 

in interest under Tenant; 

  (iii)  leasehold mortgagee or its designee shall agree to remedy any of Tenant's defaults of which 

leasehold mortgagee was notified by BBRD's notice of termination and which are reasonably susceptible of being 

so cured by leasehold mortgagee or its designee; 

  (iv)   any New Lease made pursuant to this subparagraph shall be prior to any mortgage or other lien, 

charge, or encumbrance on the fee of the Property and Tenant under such New Lease shall have the same right, title 

and interest in and to the Property and the buildings and improvements thereon as Tenant had under the Lease; 

  (v)  Tenant under any such New Lease shall be liable to perform the obligations imposed on Tenant 

by such New Lease only during the period such person has ownership of such leasehold estate.  

 (M)  In the event the leasehold mortgagee becomes the legal owner and holder of the leasehold estate under 

the Lease by foreclosure of its leasehold mortgage, or as a result of an assignment of the Lease in lieu of foreclosure 

(which assignment is hereby consented to by BBRD), or in the event leasehold mortgagee is granted a New Lease 

pursuant to subparagraph (L) above, BBRD hereby agrees that upon receipt of a written application for consent to 

the assignment of Lease from either Tenant or leasehold mortgagee to a new lessee to whom leasehold mortgagee 

desires to transfer its interest, BBRD will execute a written consent to such assignment provided there is no 

outstanding default with respect to the payment of rental under the Lease.  BBRD further agrees that, upon becoming 

the owner and holder of the leasehold estate, leasehold mortgagee shall have all rights and privileges of Tenant.  

Further, BBRD agrees that upon acquisition of the leasehold estate by leasehold mortgagee, or its assigns, any 

Page 38 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 26 of 32 

default which is not reasonably capable of being cured by leasehold mortgagee, or which is personal to leasehold 

mortgagee, shall not be required to be cured by leasehold mortgagee or its assigns. 

 (N)  In the event that leasehold mortgagee shall acquire the interest of Tenant under the Lease and, in 

accordance with the foregoing subparagraph, assign such interest to a successor lessee, upon such assignment 

leasehold mortgagee shall thereupon be relieved of any further liability under the Lease.  

 (O)  This Lease may not be amended without prior written consent of leasehold mortgagee. 

 (P)  BBRD and Tenant shall cooperate in including in this Lease by suitable amendment from time to time 

any provision which may reasonably be requested by a proposed leasehold mortgagee for the purpose of 

implementing the mortgagee-protection provisions contained in the Lease and allowing such mortgagee 

reasonable means to protect or preserve the lien of the leasehold on the occurrence of a default under the terms of 

this Lease.  BBRD and Tenant each agree to execute and deliver (and to acknowledge, if necessary, for recording 

purposes) any agreement necessary to affect any such amendment; provided, however, that any such amendment 

shall not in any way affect the term or rent under this Lease, nor otherwise in any material respect adversely affect 

any rights of BBRD under this Lease.   

 

ARTICLE 21 
ATTORNEYS FEES 

 
If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced to enforce or interpret any provision of this Lease 

or any documents incidental thereto, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys' fees 

and costs incurred in connection with such action or proceeding from the non-prevailing party, including all 

reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred on appeal or in connection with the prevailing party’s efforts to 

collect on any judgment.  The phrase "prevailing party" shall include a party who receives substantially the relief 

desired whether by dismissal, summary judgment, judgment or otherwise.  The provisions of this section shall 

survive the termination of this Lease. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 22 
OTHER PROSIVIONS 

 

Page 39 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 27 of 32 

 SECTION 2201.  REASONABLENESS AND GOOD FAITH:  Whenever this Agreement grants 

BBRD or Tenant the right to take action, exercise discretion, establish rules and regulations, make allocations, or 

other determinations, or otherwise exercise rights or fulfill obligations, BBRD and Tenant shall act reasonably 

and in good faith and take no action that might result in the frustration of the reasonable expectations of a 

sophisticated landlord and sophisticated tenant concerning the benefits to be enjoyed under this Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2202.  FORCE MAJEURE: Except as provided below, any prevention, delay, or stoppage 

attributable to strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, acts of God, civil commotion, fire or other casualty, and other 

causes beyond the reasonable control of the party obligated to perform (collectively, the Force Majeure) will 

excuse the performance of that party for a period equal to the duration of the prevention, delay or stoppage. If, 

therefore, this Agreement specifies a time period for performance of an obligation of either party, a delay that a 

Force Majeure causes will extend the period within which the party must complete its performance. The foregoing 

provisions of this Section 2202 will not apply to (1) the obligations imposed with regard to rent and other charges 

Tenant must pay in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and (ii) the obligations imposed upon BBRD to 

pay any amount becoming due to Tenant under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2203. HEADINGS: Any headings preceding the text of any articles, paragraphs or sections 

of this Agreement shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement, 

nor shall they affect its meaning, construction, or effect. 

 

 SECTION 2204.  BINDING EFFECT: The terms, conditions and covenants of this Agreement shall 

inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and assigns. This provision 

shall not constitute a waiver of any conditions prohibiting assignment or subletting. 

 

 SECTION 2205.  RIGHTS RESERVED: Rights not specifically granted Tenant by this Agreement are 

reserved to BBRD. 

 

 SECTION 2206.  NO WAIVER: There shall be no waiver of the right of either party to demand strict 

performance of any of the provisions, terms and covenants of this Agreement nor shall there be any waiver of any 

breach, default or non-performance hereof by either party, unless such waiver is explicitly made in writing by the 

other party.  Any previous waiver or course of dealing shall not affect the right of either party to demand strict 

Page 40 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 28 of 32 

performance of the provisions, terms and covenants of this Agreement with respect to any subsequent event or 

occurrence of any subsequent breach, default or nonperformance hereof by the other party. 

 

 SECTION 2207.  SEVERABILITY:  If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to 

either party to this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect 

other provisions of this Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to this end, the 

provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

 

 SECTION 2208.  INTERPRETATION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement is the result of negotiation 

between the parties hereto and has been typed/printed by one party for the convenience of both parties, and the 

parties covenant that this Agreement shall not be construed in favor of or against any of the parties hereto. 

 

 SECTION 2209.  NO AGENCY: Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the parties 

hereto or by any third party as creating the relationship of principal and agent, partners, joint venturers, or any 

other similar such relationship between the parties hereto.  It is understood and agreed that neither the method of 

computation of rentals, fees and charges, nor any other provisions contained herein, nor any acts of the parties 

hereto creates a relationship other than the relationship of landlord and tenant. 

 

 SECTION 2210. JURISDICTION AND VENUE. The parties: (a) agree that this Agreement and all 

rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida; (b) agree that any suit, 

action or legal proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be brought exclusively in a court of 

competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida; (c) consent to the jurisdiction of a court of competent 

jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida and expressly waive removal to a federal court; and (d) waive any 

objection either party may have to the laying of venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in a court of 

competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida. 

 

 SECTION 2211.  ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT: The parties hereto agree that this Agreement sets 

forth the entire agreement between the parties, and there are no promises or understandings other than those stated 

herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may be added to, modified, 

superseded, or otherwise altered, except as may be specifically authorized herein or by written instrument 

executed by the parties hereto. 

Page 41 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 29 of 32 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands and seals the date and year first above 

written. 

 
Signed, Sealed and Delivered   BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT  
in the presence of:     
 
      By:         
Witness      Mike Maino, Chairman 
       Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees  
 
       
      Attest:         
Witness      Jeff Grunow, Secretary 
       Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  
COUNTY OF BREVARD 
 

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
____________________________, 2021, by MIKE MAINO, as Chairman of the Board of Trustees for 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT who personally appeared before me, [  ] is personally known 
to me or [  ] has produced ____________________________________________________ as identification. 
 
___________________________________ 
Notary Public 
Name: _____________________________ 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      TENANT: 
      STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP 

Page 42 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 30 of 32 

 
      By:        
Witness 
      Printed Name:       
 
 
      Printed Title:       
 
      Attest:        
Witness       (corporate seal) 
 

 
STATE OF __________________  
COUNTY OF __________________ 
 

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 
____________________________, 2021, by ________________________________, as 
___________________for STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP c/o STEWARD HEALTH CARE SYSTEM 
who personally appeared before me, [  ] is personally known to me or [  ] has produced 
____________________________________________________ as identification. 
 
___________________________________ 
Notary Public 
Name: _____________________________ 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 

Page 43 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 31 of 32 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF LEASED PROPERTY 
 
 
 
 

Page 44 of 147



 

STEWARD MEDICAL GROUP AND BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT COMMERCIAL GROUND LEASE 
 

Page 32 of 32 

EXHIBIT B 
 

TENANT CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
 

Page 45 of 147



Page 46 of 147



Page 47 of 147



Page 48 of 147



Page 49 of 147



Page 50 of 147



Page 51 of 147



Page 52 of 147



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, October 8, 2021
Title: Violations Committee Appointments
Section & Item: 11.A
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W Coffey, 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: resignation email, Sue Hall letter of interest, Crouse letter of 

interest, Violations Committee Roster, Resolution 2015-16
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Selection of two homeowners to fill vacant positions and re-appointment of all current members to 3-year terms.
 

Background and Summary Information
Recently the following positions have become open on the Violations Committee:
 
- Alternate (formerly held by Ms. Deanna Newman, who resigned on August 18, 2021)
- Voting Member (currently held by Ms. Arlene Maguire whose term expires on October 11, 2021 and is not seeking re-
appointment)

At the time of the drafting of this agenda memo, the following individuals submitted resumes/letters of interest for 
consideration of appointment to the Violations Committee:

- Sue Hall
- Louise Crouse 

Additional resumes/letters of interest that are received prior to the meeting will be forwarded to the BOT and placed on 
www.bbrd.org.
 
Traditionally, the BOT has moved the existing Alternate member into a Voting member position and then appoint an 
Alternate member when a Voting member resigns or the term expires.
 
Additionally, in verifying the roster staff discovered the past appointments to the Violations Committee were 
inconsistent with Resolution 2015-16 which governs the composition and authority of the committee. Specifically, 
Resolution 2015-16 Section 3(c) states that “An appointment to fill any vacancy on the Violations Committee shall be for 
the remainder of the unexpired term of office.” Hence, to return to compliance with Resolution #2015-16 and to reduce 
future roster tracking issues, staff recommends the current members be re-appointed to 3-year terms effective October 
1, 2021 and expiring September 30, 2024
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT appoint the following individuals to the respective positions for 3-year terms 
effective October 1, 2021:
 
Voting members
- Hurrol Brinker 
- David Wheaton
- John Vogt

Page 53 of 147



- Vickie Sloss
- Stephen Holmberg (currently an alternate) 

Alternates
- Two homeowners from list of interested parties

Page 54 of 147



1

John Coffey

From: Stephanie Brown
Sent: Thursday, August 26, 2021 9:25 AM
To: John Coffey
Subject: Alternate on the VC Committee
Attachments: image001.png

See below. FYI 
 

Stephanie Brown 

District Clerk 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Blvd. 
Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 
Phone: 772.664.3141 ext 210 
Fax: 772.664.1928 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Barefoot Bay Recreation District (BBRD) is governed by the State of Florida public records law. This means that the information BBRD 
receives online including your e-mail address might be disclosed to any person making a public records request. If you have any question about the Florida public 
records law refer to Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response 
to a public-records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. 
  
 

From: Sally Biondolillo <sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org>  
Sent: Thursday, August 26, 2021 9:24 AM 
To: Stephanie Brown <sbrown@bbrd.org> 
Cc: Rich Armington <richarmington@bbrd.org> 
Subject: Message from an Alternate on the VC Committee 
 
Stephanie,  
 
Please see the message below. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Sally-Ann Biondolillo 
DOR/ARCC Administrative Assistant 
625 Barefoot Blvd. 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 
Tel:  (772) 664-3141  Ext. 203 
Fax:  (772) 664-7552 
sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org 
 

Page 55 of 147



2

 
 

PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Barefoot Bay Recreation District is governed by the State of Florida public records law. This means that the 
information we receive online including your email address might be disclosed to any person making a public records request. If you 
have any questions about the Florida public records law refer to Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. Under Florida law, email addresses are 
public records. If you do not want your email address released in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic mail to 
this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. 

 
 
 
 

From: Deanna Newman <deanna7121@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 18, 2021 7:25 PM 
To: Sally Biondolillo <sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org> 
Subject: Re: 08.27.2021 VC Agenda, Minutes and Packet 
 
Hi Sally, 
      Unfortunately due to my work schedule, I'm going to have to step down from the violation committee as of today. 
 
Sorry and thanks for everything!  
Deanna Newman 
 
 
 
On Wed, Aug 18, 2021, 8:38 AM Sally Biondolillo <sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org> wrote: 

Attached you will find the Agenda, Minutes and Packet for the next VC meeting being held on August 27, 2021. 

  

Thank you, 

  

Sally-Ann Biondolillo 

DOR/ARCC Administrative Assistant 

625 Barefoot Blvd. 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 

Tel:  (772) 664-3141  Ext. 203 

Fax:  (772) 664-7552 

sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org 

  

Page 56 of 147



3

The linked image cannot be displayed.  The file may have been moved, renamed, or deleted. Verify that the link  
points to the correct file and location.

 

  

PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Barefoot Bay Recreation District is governed by the State of Florida public records law. This means that 
the information we receive online including your email address might be disclosed to any person making a public records request. If 
you have any questions about the Florida public records law refer to Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. Under Florida law, email 
addresses are public records. If you do not want your email address released in response to a public-records request, do not send 
electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. 

  

  

  

Page 57 of 147



1

John Coffey

From: Stephanie Brown
Sent: Friday, September 24, 2021 2:51 PM
To: John Coffey
Subject: FW: Violations Committee

See below. 
 

Stephanie Brown 
District Clerk 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Blvd. 
Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 
Phone: 772.664.3141 ext 210 
Fax: 772.664.1928 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Barefoot Bay Recreation District (BBRD) is governed by the State of Florida public records law. This means that the information BBRD 
receives online including your e‐mail address might be disclosed to any person making a public records request. If you have any question about the Florida public 
records law refer to Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. Under Florida law, e‐mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e‐mail address released in response 
to a public‐records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. 
  
 

From: Sally Biondolillo <sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org>  
Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2021 2:22 PM 
To: Stephanie Brown <sbrown@bbrd.org> 
Cc: shprthd728@yahoo.com 
Subject: FW: Violations Committee 
 
Stephanie,  
 
Please see Susan’s email below. 
Please let us know if you need anything else for her to be considered for the position on the Violation Committee. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Sally‐Ann Biondolillo 
DOR/ARCC Administrative Assistant 
625 Barefoot Blvd. 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 
Tel:  (772) 664‐3141  Ext. 203 
Fax:  (772) 664‐7552 
sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org 
 

Page 58 of 147



2

 
 

PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Barefoot Bay Recreation District is governed by the State of Florida public records law. This means that the 
information we receive online including your email address might be disclosed to any person making a public records request. If you 
have any questions about the Florida public records law refer to Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. Under Florida law, email addresses are 
public records. If you do not want your email address released in response to a public‐records request, do not send electronic mail to 
this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. 

 
 
 
 

From: Susan Hall <shprthd728@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Thursday, September 23, 2021 1:59 PM 
To: Sally Biondolillo <sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org> 
Subject: Re: Violations Committee 
 
 
Sally 
 
I really don't have a resume anymore as I've been retired for over 4 years but here is information on myself. 
 
2001-2017/Trust Administrative Officer for US Trust/Bank of America Private Wealth Division, I assisted clients with all 
their banking, investments and trusts. 
 
I have over 40 years of experience working as an Executive Assistant, working for Deloitte and Touche Consulting and 
Anderson Consulting in Chicago. 
 
I have lived in Barefoot Bay since 2017, I lived at 606 Royal Tern Drive and previous to that I lived in Snug Harbor for 2 
years, I now live at 904 Hawthorn Circle since October of last year. 
 
I also teach Mahjongg lessons at Johns Island on Tuesday and Thursdays from November to April. 
 
I am interested in the position on the Violation Committee,  
 
Thank you for your time, 
 
Susan Hall 
219-765-1099 
 
 
On Monday, September 20, 2021, 02:02:02 PM EDT, Sally Biondolillo <sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org> wrote:  
 
 

Susan,  

  

The Violation Committee consists of five members and two alternates, all must be property owners here in the Bay. 

The Committee meets every second and fourth Friday of every month. 

The DOR staff will present cases that have been found to be in violation of the Deed of Restrictions. 

Page 59 of 147



3

The Committee votes yah or nay, if found to be in violation a Final Facts and Conclusion is signed and forwarded to the 
homeowner. 

Once found to be in violation, they are give so many days to correct, if not corrected the homeowner’s property is placed 
on suspension and they may not use our facilities. 

If still not corrected within the time frame given by the Committee, the case will be brought to the Board of Trustees for 
further action. 

  

I have also attached a copy of the Deed of Restrictions for your review. 

Please let me know if you have any other questions.  

  

Thank you, 

  

Sally-Ann Biondolillo 

DOR/ARCC Administrative Assistant 

625 Barefoot Blvd. 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 

Tel:  (772) 664-3141  Ext. 203 

Fax:  (772) 664-7552 

sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org 

  

 

  

PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Barefoot Bay Recreation District is governed by the State of Florida public records law. This 
means that the information we receive online including your email address might be disclosed to any person making a 
public records request. If you have any questions about the Florida public records law refer to Chapter 119 Florida 
Statutes. Under Florida law, email addresses are public records. If you do not want your email address released in 
response to a public-records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in 
writing. 

  

  

    

  

Page 60 of 147



4

From: Stephanie Brown <sbrown@bbrd.org>  
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2021 1:05 PM 
To: Sally Biondolillo <sallybiondolillo@bbrd.org> 
Cc: Kristen Gelinas-Sullivan <KSullivan@bbrd.org> 
Subject: FW: Violations Committee 

  

Hi Sally, 

  

Can you please respond to the resident below? 

  

Thank you 

  

Stephanie Brown 

District Clerk 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

625 Barefoot Blvd. 

Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 

Phone: 772.664.3141 ext 210 

Fax: 772.664.1928 

  

  

  

  

  

  

PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Barefoot Bay Recreation District (BBRD) is governed by the State of Florida public records law. This means that the 
information BBRD receives online including your e-mail address might be disclosed to any person making a public records request. If you have any 
question about the Florida public records law refer to Chapter 119 Florida Statutes. Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not 
want your e-mail address released in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone 
or in writing. 

  

  

Page 61 of 147



5

From: Susan Hall <shprthd728@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2021 12:51 PM 
To: Stephanie Brown <sbrown@bbrd.org> 
Subject: Violations Committee 

  

Stephanie 

  

Can you tell me more about the position on the violations committee.  I'm interested but would like to know what the 
position entails. 

  

Thank you 

Susan Hall 

904 Hawthorn Circle 219-765-1099 

Page 62 of 147



September 27, 2021 

Louise Crouse              

808 Sapodilla Drive                                  

Barefoot Bay  Fl 32976 

 

Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees 

Re:  Vacancy on the Violations Committee 

Qualifications: 

• Served on the Board of Trustees from 2007 to 2016 

Firsthand knowledge of the Violation Committee’s work to protect and support the 

Deed of Restrictions 

Knowledge of the legal requirements for processing violations  

Working with residents to best understand the process of making claims of violations, 

investigations and the requirements for notification and curing the violation. 

• Served on the Committees to revise the Deed of Restrictions- 

This process gave me working knowledge of what is in the document and the 

relationship of this document to the ARCC and the Policy Manual for Employees and the 

Board of Trustees 

• Full time resident since 2003 

 

• Active in the Barefoot Bay Community  

Neighborhood Watch Coordinator, Little Theater, Computer Club and Pinochle Club. 

Volunteer- Concordia Lutheran Church- Office Administrator and Treasurer;                      

Ecumenical Council Food Pantry Executive Board and volunteer at the Food Pantry 

I feel that my experience and community involvement would be an asset to the work of the Violations 

Committee.  Please consider me for appointment to the committee.  If you have further questions, 

please contact me by email at lcrouse2@cfl.rr.com or by phone- 772-913-5113.  Thank you for your 

consideration. 

 

Louise Crouse 

 

 

 

Page 63 of 147

mailto:lcrouse2@cfl.rr.com


 

Page 64 of 147



          Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

 

 

 

Violations Committee Roster (30Sep21) 

Contact Information Appointment 
Date* 

Reappointed  
Y/N 

End of Term Number of 
Terms Served 

David Wheaton 
1477 Barefoot Circle 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 
Bendavid58@yahoo.com 
239.220.0948 

9/22/2020 N/A 9/21/2023  

Hurrol Brinker, Vice-Chair 
554 Tarpon Drive 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 
Pbrinker3@cfl.rr.com   
772.202.4216 

10/9/2020 N/A 10/8/2023  

John C. Vogt 
644 Periwinkle Circle 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 
Johnv52@verizon.net  
814.450.9923  

12/4/2020 N/A 12/3/2023  

Vickie L. Sloss 
625 Wedelia Drive 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 
Vlsloss1@gmail.com 
908.343.7000 

10/09/2020 

 

N/A 10/08/2023  

Vacant (term expires on 10/12/21)     

 Alternate(s)    

Stephen Holmberg 
506 Puffin Drive 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 
sbumpkins@yahoo.com  
386.986.8578 

2/23/2021 N/A 2/22/2024  

Vacant      

 

*Appointment date reflects date appointed as a voting member and does not include dates served as an alternate. 

Page 65 of 147

mailto:Bendavid58@yahoo.com
mailto:Pbrinker3@cfl.rr.com
mailto:Johnv52@verizon.net
mailto:Vlsloss1@gmail.com
mailto:sbumpkins@yahoo.com


Page 66 of 147



Page 67 of 147



Page 68 of 147



Page 69 of 147



Page 70 of 147



Page 71 of 147



Page 72 of 147



Page 73 of 147



Page 74 of 147



Page 75 of 147



Page 76 of 147



Page 77 of 147



Page 78 of 147



Page 79 of 147



Page 80 of 147



Page 81 of 147



Page 82 of 147



Page 83 of 147



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, October 8, 2021
Title: Golf Course Lake Bank RFP Evaluation Committee Recommendation
Section & 
Item:

11.B

Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal 
Impact:

$237,276.00 (FY22 funding of $175,000.00)

Contact: Bruce Amoss, 1st Vice Chair, Ernie Cruz, Golf Manager, John W Coffey, 
ICMA-CM, Community Manager

Attachments
:

27Sep21 Lake Bank Restoration RFP Evalauation Committee meeting 
minutes, RFQ ranking sheet 27Sep21, Lake and Wetland Management 
proposal, Crosscreek proposal, Landshore proposal, Anchor Marine 
proposal

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Consideration of Request for Proposal (RFP) evaluation committee recommendation.
 

Background and Summary Information
The FY22 Budget contains the following budget in the REM/Capital Department for the project (budgeted as two 
separate projects, but was understood to be executed as a combined project):
 
$100,000 Golf Course lake bank (#6, #2, & #3) repairs (2,133 linear feet)
$175,000 Golf Course lake bank (#5, #9, & #13) repairs (3,703 linear feet)
$101,500 Total Budget (4,836 linear feet)
 
The project was described in the RFP as follows:
BBRD’s Golf Course has six lakes and two retention areas that require erosion control for stability and safety. These 
areas are anywhere from one foot high to as much as 14 feet high by certain greens. Over the past years, multiple 
restoration efforts have been accomplished. The last restoration (early 2020), the vendor utilized one layer of permanent 
geo-tube constructed at “404 woven” monofilament polypropylene, with a layer of polyethylene for added UV 
protection. The entire project received a second -fully filled – “sacrificial” geo-tube layer that will provide fill material to 
create a 4:1 slope above the permanent geo-tube and created a small beach or shallow area (depending on depth). This 
geo-tubing stabilization system restored portions of the lake banks to their original design, growth, and health as 
originally created. 
 
Proposals shall conform to the St. John’s River Water Management District specifications for “non-bulkhead/lake 
maintenance” geo-tube repair. Any existing drainpipes shall be extended under the geo-tube to continue intended 
use.     
 
Due to the uncertainty of the proposal pricing, staff included an option for additional work as listed below:
GC Lake Bank (#1 left side)           248 linear feet
GC Lake Bank (#1 right side)         312 linear feet
GC Lake Bank (#11 left side)         750 linear feet
Total                                             1,310 linear feet
 

Page 84 of 147



 
The Policy Manual requires a request for proposal (RFP) process to be used for any project anticipated to cost over 
$75,000. Additionally, the evaluation committee shall consist of three voting members (one Trustee, one employee 
from the user department, and one non-employee resident as selected by the Community Manager) plus two non-
voting members (Chairman of the BOT and the Community Manager).
 
On August 24, 2021, the BOT authorized the release of a Request for Proposal for the project. On September 27th, the 
evaluation committee met and opened the following bids:
 

  

The evaluation committee reviewed the proposal, compared them to previous restoration projects, and ultimately 
made a unanimous recommendation to recommend the BOT award contract to Crosscreek Environmental, Inc for both 
the base bid and option #1 work at a combined cost of $237,276.00.
 
Sufficient contingency budget is available to cover the budget overage.
 
If the BOT awards acontract to Corsscreek Environmental, Inc., General Counsel Repperger will commence drafting a 
contract for Chairman Maino to execute.
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT award contract for Golf Course lake bank restoration to Crosscreek Environmental, 
Inc. in the amount of $237,276.00, authorize Chairman Maino to sign the contract when available, and instruct staff to 
execute a budget transfer from R&M/Capital Contingency to the combined project account.
 
 

Page 85 of 147



 

 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

Golf Course Lake Bank Restoration Evaluation Committee Meeting 

Minutes for September 27, 2021 

 

Committee Member Trustee Maino called meeting to order at 1pm. 
 
Committee Chairman Maino lead Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call 
Present: Committee Member Chairman Maino, Committee Member Trustee Amoss, Committee 
Member Cruz, Committee Member Harvey Smith, and Committee Member John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM. 
 
Audience: Hurrol Brinker; Chairman Emeritus Klosky, CDO; and Mackenzie Leiva, Management Analyst 
 
Election of Chairman 
Committee Member Cruz nominated Committee Member Trustee Amoss.  Approved 3-0. 
 
Opening of proposals (base bid only) 

• Lake and Wetland   $354,205.00 

• Crosscreek Environmental $1,86,286.00 

• Anchor Marine Services  $296,776.00 

• Landshore         $385,911 
 
RFP review 
The committee reviewed the four proposals and compared them to the 2014 land bank restoration. 
Options for the next meeting (interviewing the vendors, only evaluating bids based on base bid, etc.) 
were discussed.  The availability of additional money to fund any overage was also discussed.  
 
Motion member Smith to recommend Crosscreek’s combined base bid and option #1 of $237,276.00, 
Committee member Cruz seconded, approved 3-0. 
 
Committee Chair Amoss announced the next meeting is canceled.  
 
Committee member Cruz made a motion to adjourn, approved 3-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 1:59pm. 

 

 

 

Page 86 of 147



 RFP 2021-03 Golf Course Lake Bank Restoration

 Ranking Sheet

Total 
Score

No. COMPANY NAME Weight
Raw 

score
Weighted 

Score Weight
Raw 

score
Weighted 

Score Weight
Raw 

score
Weighted 

Score
0-10 0-10 0-10

1 0.2 0.3 0.5

2 0.2 0.3 0.5

3 0.2 0.3 0.5

4 0.2 0.3 0.5

Company

Lake and Wetland Management

Crosscreek Environmental, Inc.

Lakeshore Enerprises

Anchor Marine Services N/A

Submitted By: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM

Title: BBRD Community Manager

27-Sep-21

354,205.00          

186,186.00          

385,911.00          

Base Bid Option #1 Total Bid

296,776.00          

Start Date and Number
 of Days of Project

Experience and 
References Cost

The committee voted 3 - 0 to recommend Crosscreek’s combined base bid and option #1 of $237,276.00 to the BOT for 
award of contract.

82,184.00        

51,090.00        

79,645.00        

436,389.00       

237,276.00       

465,556.00       

296,776.00       

Page 87 of 147



Page 88 of 147



Page 89 of 147



Page 90 of 147



Page 91 of 147



Page 92 of 147



Page 93 of 147



Page 94 of 147



Page 95 of 147



Page 96 of 147



Page 97 of 147



Page 98 of 147



Page 99 of 147



Page 100 of 147



Page 101 of 147



Page 102 of 147



Page 103 of 147



Page 104 of 147



Page 105 of 147



Page 106 of 147



Page 107 of 147



Page 108 of 147



Page 109 of 147



Page 110 of 147



Page 111 of 147



Page 112 of 147



Page 113 of 147



Page 114 of 147



Page 115 of 147



Page 116 of 147



Page 117 of 147



Page 118 of 147



Page 119 of 147



Page 120 of 147



Page 121 of 147



Page 122 of 147



Page 123 of 147



Page 124 of 147



Page 125 of 147



Page 126 of 147



Page 127 of 147



Page 128 of 147



Page 129 of 147



Page 130 of 147



Page 131 of 147



Page 132 of 147



Page 133 of 147



Page 134 of 147



Page 135 of 147



Page 136 of 147



Page 137 of 147



Page 138 of 147



Page 139 of 147



Page 140 of 147



Page 141 of 147



Page 142 of 147



Page 143 of 147



Page 144 of 147



Board of 
Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Friday, October 8, 2021
Title: Neighborhood Revitalization Program(NRP) Purchase 

Confirmation 413 Plover Drive
Section & Item: 11.C
Department: Resident Relations
Fiscal Impact: Purchase Price $16,030.56
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W Coffey, 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: scanner@bbrd.org_20211001_123150
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Confirmation of 413 Plover Drive purchase per the Policy Manual’s “Purchase or Sale of Properties by BBRD Using 
Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) Funding.” 
 

Background and Summary Information
• The Chairman of the NRP BOT Sub-Committee shall be authorized to approve (as recommended by the Community 
Manager or designee) the expenditures of NRP funds in excess of $15,000.00 and not to exceed $25,000.00 by staff 
toward the acquisition of a property identified by the Sub-Committee in accordance with NRP rules as established by 
the BOT.

• The purchase of the property shall be ratified by the Board of Trustees at the next scheduled regular meeting of the 
Board of Trustees.

On September 29, 2021, NRP Chairman Maino authorized the purchase of 413 Plover Drive for $16,030.56. Once a clean 
title is secured, the property will be listed for sale (of which the proceeds will go back into the NRP project line-item for 
future use to improve the community via the removal of derelict homes and the sale of the vacant property).

Staff recommends the BOT confirms the purchase of 413 Plover Drive via the Neighborhood Revitalization Program.

Page 145 of 147



BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 

Address: 413 Plover 
Sale Price:$ 16,030.56 

j/?-o/�1 ---7;/JJ;Att-v-r
MictMel Maino-NRF1 CfJairperson 

Physical Address 
625 Barefoot Boulevard 
Barefoot Bay, Fl 32976-7305 

(772) 664-3141-Phone
(772) 664-7552-Fax

www.bbrd.org

Billing Address 
625 Barefoot Boulevard 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976-7305 

Page 146 of 147



Page 147 of 147


	1. Thought of the Day
	2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
	3. Roll Call
	4. Additions or Deletions to the Agenda
	5. Approval of the Agenda
	6. Presentations and Proclamations
	A. Cancer Awareness Proclamation
	Color My World Cancer Proclamation


	7. Approval of Minutes
	A. Minutes dated September 28, 2021
	09.28.2021


	8. Treasurer’s Report
	A. Treasurer's Report
	Treasurers BOT Meeting Report 211008


	9. Audience Participation
	10. Unfinished Business
	A. Discussion of COVID-19 Precautions
	Agenda Memo

	B. Steward Medical Group Proposed Ground Lease
	Agenda Memo
	Draft Ground Lease Agreement BBRD and Steward Medical Group
	Exhibit A Legal Description for Ground Lease with Parcel Sketch
	Exhibit B Conceptual Site Plan Steward Medical Group Land Lease
	Executed LOI December 3, 2020 Ground Lease Steward Medical Group-BBRD


	11. New Business
	A. Violations Committee Appointments
	Agenda Memo
	resignation email
	Sue Hall letter of interest
	Crouse letter of interest
	Violations Committee Roster
	Resolution 2015-16

	B. Golf Course Lake Bank RFP Evaluation Committee Rec
	Agenda Memo
	27Sep21 Lake Bank Restoration RFP Evalauation Committee meeting minutes
	RFQ ranking sheet 27Sep21
	Lake and Wetland Management proposal
	Crosscreek proposal
	Landshore proposal
	Anchor Marine proposal

	C. Neighborhood Revitalization Program(NRP) Purchase 
	Neighborhood Revitalization Program(NRP) Purchase 
	scanner@bbrd.org_20211001_123150


	12.  Manager’s Report
	A. October 8th Community Manager's Report

	13. Attorney’s Report
	14. Incidental Trustee Remarks
	15. Adjournment



